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TRANSMITTAL LETTER



To the Chairman of the Caunty Board,
Members of the Board of Commissioners and
Citizens of Menard County

Gentleman:

As Treasurer of Menard County, | am pleased to present the County’s-annual financial report for:
the fiscal year ended November 30, 2018. The financial statements included in this report conform to
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.in the United States (GAAP) as established by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB),

The annual financial repart was prepared with an emphasis on full disclosure of the financial
activities of the County. Responsibility for the completeness and the reliability of the content rests with
County management. Toprovide a reasanable basis for making these representations, management of
the County strives. constantly to maintain a comprehensive set of internal controls, designed to ensure
the.assets of the County are protected from loss, theft or misuse. These controls also ensure that
adequate accounting data is recorded to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles. Because the cost of internal controls should not
outweigh their benefits, the County's internal controls have been designed to provide reasonable rather
than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. The data
presented in the report is believed to be complete and reliable in all material respects and is reparted in
& manner that presents fairly the financial position and results of operations as measured by the
financial activity of the County’s various funds. All statements and disclosures necessary for the reader
to obtain an understanding of the County’s financial activities have been included.

Asa re‘ltipie ht of Federal and State financial assistance, the County's internal cantrols must also
ensure, as well as document, compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to these
programs. Management periodically evaluates the effectiveness of the County's internal controls.

Michaet J. Feriozz, certified public accountant, provided the independent audit of Menard
County’s financial statements. The goal of the independent audit is to provide reasonablé assurance the
financial statements of the County for the fiscal year ended Novermber 30, 2018, are free of material
misstatement, The audit included considerations of our internal control over financial reporting as a



basts far designing auditing procedures and involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used, and the
County's cornpliance with applicable laws and regulations. In additicn, with his communications letter
to the audit committee, the County Commissioners, he continues to remind us to increase and maintain
our organizational emphasis on monitering the collection status of our accounts receivable for health
services provided by our emergency medical services and Sunny Acres Nursing Home.

The independent auditor's reports directly follow this letter.

This annuai financial report includes a narrative introduction from management in the form of
Management's Discussion and Analysis {MD&A) that provides an overview and analysis to accompany
the basic financial statements. This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and
should be read in conjunclion with it.

This report includes all the funds of our governmento! and business-type octivities as well as the
component units for which the County is financially accountable. The County provides a full range of
governmental services, in addition the County owns a skilled care nursing home along with an
independent living facility which account for the governmental and business-type activities reports, The
Menard County Emergency Telephone System {ETSB) 911 is included in the County’s basic financial
statements asa “discretely” presented component unit. The financial statements for ETSB 911 appear
in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is separate from
the County and to differentiate its financial position and results of operation from that of the County.

ECONOMIC INFORMATION

The County’s annual unemployment rate for 2018 averagad 3.74%, this was down .26% from
the previous year, Menard County is included in the Local Workforce Area 20 (LWIA 20) which also
includes Cass, Logan, Christian and Sangamon Counties. The unemployment rate for LWIA 20 was 4.4%
in 2018.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

A new structure for Animal Control went out for bid, Custom Structures was selected as the low
bidder. Construction will proceed as funds become available.

Menard County Senior Transportation took possession of a new 2017 Ford Starcraft van
awarded through a lllinois Department of Transportation grant.

Menard County renewed its intergovernmental agreement with the Sangamon County
Department of Public Health for FY2019 with a 3% increase in the contract amount,

‘ Zoning permits are required for new building canstructions as well as additions to current
buitdings within the county outside of city limits for Athens, Greenview and Petersburg. During 2018, 75
permits were issued, 13 of which were for new homes. The Zoning office also maintains GIS maps,
which includes property splits, tax district maps and E911 maps.



Several things have happened in the Sheriff's department this past year. The department
purchased and equipped a 2013 Jeep Grand Cherokee and a 2013 Ford Explorer. They received a couple
grants from IDOT for the car computers {539,265) and for in car cameras (524,000).

Sheriff's department also replaced lights inside and outside the County Jail. Total cost was
$19,235 with the jall commissary account paying $7,000 of that cost,

They also purchased a John Deere lawn tractor with cost being split between the courthouse
and jaii repair and maintenance line items.

Approximately 10 miles of county highway were chip sealed in 2018. This included West
Oakford Avenue, East Dakford Avenue, Sunny Acres Road and Chautauqua Road. This work required
37,451 gallons of CRS-2 road oil, 1,100 tons of CA-16.

The Highway Department applied for and was awarded 41,000,000 in federal Highway Safety
improvement Funds for the reconstruction and widening of a tangent portion of the Athens Blacktop
Road from west of New Salern Bluff Road to west of Berkshire Road for a total length of one mile. Right-
of-way acquisition for this tangent portion should begin sometime in the spring of 2015. Construction
work is anticipated to begin in the summer of 2020,

The County of Menard entered into a joint agreement with the City of Petersburg to remove a
structurally deficient bridge which carries West Douglas Avenue over an abandoned railroad. The
project will include lowering the roadway and filling the abandoned railroad within the right-of-way.
Reconstruction of the entire roadway from Blue Jay Road to South 14™ Street will include three T-
intersections, sidewalks, curb and gutters, drainage and other miscellaneous work as required. When
completed, this project will improve the sight distance for traffic around the PORTA 5chool entrance.
Construction work is anticipated to beginin the summer of 2021,

FINANCIAL INFORMATION, MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL

The Board of Commissioners, by {llinois State Statute, adapts an annual appropriation budget
for the County on ar around the last day of November. Appropriations represent the maximum
expenditures authorized during the fiscal year and they cannot legally he exceeded unless amended by
the County Board. Unexpected amounts lapse at fiscal year-end.

Maintaining the General Fund’s fund balance has heen a challenge since 2006. Qur budgeting
objectives always include retaining and restoring the General Fund’s fund balance to eliminate the need
for short-term borrowing, and to ensure ohbligations can be timely met and an adequate cushion against
unexpected decreases in revenues exists. The General Fund’s fund balance is approximately 51% of
annual expenditures.

The County continues to face future funding demands for several areas of government:
{1) the increased cost of providing optiona| health insurance for employees, (2) the rising cost of
praperty, casualty and liability insurance, {3) the constant maintenance and repair required to preserve
the County’s ageing buildings, (4} the replacement casts for roads and bridges, {6) the uncantrollable



costs of unfunded mandates by our legislature and (5) the pressure and dernands from the taxpayers
for higher levels of service.

The County Treasurer pools and invests all funds of the County within Investment Policy
guidelines established November 1955 (revised April 29, 2014) and according to federal, state and other
legal requirements, most particularly the llinois Complies Statutes 30 ILCS 235/2. Cash is invested in
insured and collateralized interest bearing demand deposits and money market accounts, cectificates of
deposit and the Wineis Fund Money Market investment pool that is administered by the lllinois State
Treasurer. {nterest is still on the uphill climh, interest we received came in over the budgeted amount
with an overage in FY 2018 of approximately 33.2%.
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MJF
Michael ]. Feriozzi, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Chairman and other County Commissioners
Menard County, lllinois

Report on the Financial Statements

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govermmental activities, the business-
type activities, the discretely presented component unil, cach major fund, and the agpregate
remaining fund information of Mcnard County, 1llinois as of and for the vear ended November 30,
2018, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial stalements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these [inancial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of inlernal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility 1s to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted
my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stales of America
and the standards applicable o financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Thosc standards require that I plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statcments arc free of material
misstatement. My audit of Menard County, Illinois’ business-type activities was not conducted in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant o the entily’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statcments in order to design audit procedures that
arc appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
cffcctiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

1316 South Gilenwood Springfield, Illinois 62704 (217) 522-8689



Michael J, Feriozzi, CPA Page 2

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I obtained is sufficient and appropriate to providc a basis for my
audit opinions.

Opinions

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all maierial respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activitics, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Menard
County, Illinois as of November 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position and cash
flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of matter
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles penerally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 1 through XVII, and the budgetary comparison
information, schedules of employer contributions, and schedules of funding progress on pages 41
through 60, including the related notes on pages i thru ii; be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not part of the basic financial statements is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be a significant part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historical context. I applied certain hmited procedures to the required supplementary infonmnation
in accordance with auditing standards penerally accepted in the United States of America which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and, comparing
the information for consistency with management’s responses to my inqutries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge I obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements. 1 do
not express an opinion or other any form of assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide me with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Also, Required Supplementary Information includes certain pension data and information from the
December 31, 2018 measurement date that will be used for pension reporting in the 2019 financial
statemments. Again, [ do not express an opinion or other any form of assurance on that information
because the limited procedures do not provide me with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Other Information

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise Menard County’s hasic financial statements, The transmittal letter from the
Menard County Treasurer, and supplementary information sections are presented for purposcs of
additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial statements.

1316 Seuth Glenwaod Springfield, Winois 62704 (217) 522-8689



Michael J. Feriozzi, CPA Page 3

The iransmittal letter from the Menard County Treasurer has not been subjected to the auditing
pracedures applied in the audit of the bavic financial siatements and, accordingly, I do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on it.

The supplementary information is the responsihility of management and includes the combining
nonmajor fundys and the fiduciary funds’ financial statements. The supplementary information was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In my opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Other reporting required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, 1 have also issued my report dated May 29,
2019 on my consideration of Menard County, iliinois’ internal control over financial reporting and
my tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of intcrnal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion
on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report 1s an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Menard County,
lllinois® internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Wieehadd, f. Fonopgly

Springfield, Illinois
May 29, 2019

1316 South Glenrwood Lﬁ‘p_r};iﬁ;lrl, Hlinols 62704 (217) 522-8689




MJF
Michael J. Feriozzi, CPA

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

To the Chairman and other County Commissioners
Menard County, Illinois

I have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable (o financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standardy issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
governmental activilies, the business-type activities, the discrefely presented component unit, each
major fund, and the aggregaie remeining fund information of Mcnard County, Illinois as of and for
the year cnded November 30, 2018, which collectively comprise thc County’s basic financial
statcments, and have issued my report thereon dated May 29, 2019, The financial statements of the
business-type activities and the proprietary funds’ financial statements were not audited in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit, I considered Menard County, [llinois’ iniernal control over
{inanctal reporting (internal control) 10 determine the auditing procedurcs that arc appropriate in
the circumstanecs for the purposc of cxpressing my opinions on the financial statcments, but not
for the purposc of cxpressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.
Accordingly, I do not cxpress an opinion on the effectiveness of Menard County lllinois’ internal
control.

A deficiency in internal comirol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficicney or
combination of dcficiencics in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
matenal misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies
in internal conirol that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

My consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily disclose deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during my audit I did not identify any deficiencies in inlernal control that [

1316 South Glenwood Springfield, Hlinois 62704 (217) 522-86839
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consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.

Compliance and Other Mutters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Menard County Illinois’ financial
statements are free of material missiatement, I performed tests of s compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreement’s, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and malerial effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of my audit and,
accordingly, I do not express such an opinion.

Purpose aof this Repori

This purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Stundards in considering the entily’s internal control and
comphance Accordmgly, lhlS communication is not suilable for any other purpose.

Springfield, 1111415 a 3

May 29, 2019

13 16 South Glenwoud Sprmgf' eld, Hiinois 62704 (217) 522-8689
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (M D &A)
For the year ended November 30, 2018

The County of Menard, [llinois’® (County) managementi’s discussion and analysis provides an overview of the
County’s financial activities for the year ended Noverber 30, 2018 and is designed to (a) assist the reader in
focusing on significant financial issues, (b) identify changes in the County’s financial position (its ability to
address the next and subsequent years’ challenges), (c) identify any material deviations from the financial plan
{the approved budget), and (d) identify the individual fund issues or concerns.

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic financial statemenis and
is designed to focus on the current vear’s financial activities, resulting changes, and currently known facts. We
encourage you to read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the County’s
audited baxic financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

* At November 30, 2018, thc County’s net position was $27.565,000. Of this amount, $14,937,000 is invested
in capital assets, net of related debt; $9,465,000 is restricted for special purposes and uses and $54,000
represents the net position of our three Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund pension plans which, as discussed
below, is not available to the County; lcaving $1,515,000 available for the County’s ongoing governmental
activities and $1,594,000 available for its ongoing business-type activities.

+ In 2015, the County adopted and implemented the provisions of Govermmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 68, Accounting und Financial Reporting for Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27
and Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions made after the Measurement Date — An Amendment
of GASB 68. Among other requirements and changes, these standards required the County to recognize a liability
(asset) in its povernment-wide {inancial statements for the net pension liability (asset) associated with its pension
plans. The governmental fund financial statements are not affected by the new standards. The proprictary funds’
financial statements, specifically, the Sunny Acres Nursing Home Fund, are affected.

» The net position of our governmental activities increased $416,000 or 2.1%; the nat position of our business-
type activities increased $183,000 or 2.6%.

¢ General tax revenues increased 3.2%, with property taxes increasing 3.2%.

» The net cost of the County’s governmental activities decreased 6.5 %. This, primarily, because we continue
to work at conserving our roacs and bridges net assets for future construction costs funding,.

o The net charges for services provided for the County’s business-type activities increased 3.7% while expenses
decreased 6.2%. The decrcase in expenses was driven primarily by favorable results from our regular IMRF
pension plan and net risk management costs.

*  The General Fund experienced a decrease.in the fund balance of $57,000 before the return of $60,000 from
our huxiness-type activities resulting in a $3,000 net increase in the fund balance. The annual transfer to the
Building mprovement Fund was $75,000.




Menard County, Ilinois
Management Discussion and Analysis — continued

USING THIS ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

The basic financial statements focus on the County as a whole (government-wide) and on the major individual
fimds. Both of these perspectives (government wide and major fund) allow the financial statements users to
address relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison (year to year or government to government), and
enhance the County’s financial accountability,

Overview of the financial statements

This annual financial reporl consists of four parls — managemeni s discussion and analysis (this scetion), the basic
Jinancial statemenis, required supplementary information, and an oplional section that provides combining
statements [or nonmajor governmental funds and the fiduciary funds. The basic financial statements include two
kinds of statements that present diffcrent views of the County.

The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term and short-term
information about the Connky’s overall financial status.

The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the County government,
reporting the County’s operations in more defail than the government-wide statements -

»  The governmental funds statements tell how general government services like public safety, and roads
and bridges were {inanced in the short term as well what remains for future spending. Such funds include
the general fund, and several other funds that are special revenue funds; funds that account for and report
the procecds of specific revenue sources that are restricted for use for specified sources other than debt

service or capital projects. The County does not usc or is required to usc debt service or capital projeets
funds.

¥ Proprietary funds statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about the activities the
povernment operates like businesses (emterprise funds), such as Swunny Acres Nursing Home and
Coumntryside Estates of the County.

¥ Fiduciary funds statements provide information about the financial relationships — like the Menard County
Collector, and the Township Bridge and Township Motor Fuel Tax arrangements with the County’s road
districts — in which the County acls solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others, to whom the
resources in question belong.

The financial statements also include nofes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and
provide more detailed data. The hasic financial siatements are {ollowed by a section of required supplementary
information that [urther explains and supports the information in the financial statements. These required parts of
our annual financial report are arranged and relate to each other as follows —

|



Menard County, Ilinois
Management Discussion and Analysis — continued

Management’s Basic Required
Discussion Financial Supplementary
and of | Statements | and | Information
Analysiy
¥
]
Gavernment-wide Fund Notes
Financial Finaneial to the
Statements Statements Financial
Statements

In addition to these required elements, we have included a section with combining statements that provide details
about our nonmajor governmental funds and fiduciary funds.

The table that follows summarizes the major features of the County’s financial statements, including the portion

of the County government they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview
section of management’s diseussicn and analysis cxplains the structure and contents of cach of the statements.

I



Menard County, Hlinois ,
Management Discussion and Analysis — continued

Major Features of Menard County’s Govermment-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Scope

Required financial
statements

Accounting basis
and measurement
focus

Type of asset/
liability data

Type of infllow and
autflow data

Fund statements

Government-wide
Statements

Government Funds

Proprietary Funds

Fiduciary Funds

Entire County government
{exeept fiduciary funds) and
discretely presented
component units

Statement of net position
Statement of activities

Accrual accounting and
cconomic resources
locus

All assets and liabilitics,
financial and capital,
and shart-term and
long-term

All revennes and
expenses during the
year, regardless of
when cash is received
or paid

Government-wide financial statemenis

The activitics of the
County thot are not
proprictary or
fiduciary

Balance sheet
Statcment of revenues
expenditures, and
changes in fund
halances

Modified acerual
decounting and
current financial
resources focus

Only assets expected
to be wsed np and
liabilities that come
due during the year
ar soon therealter: no
capital assets included

Revenues for which
cash is received
during the year or
or soon after the end
of the year;
expenditures when
goads or services
have been received
and payment is due
during the year or
soon thereafter

Activities the County
operates similar to
private businesscs,

Statement of net
asscts, Statement

of revenues, expenses
and changes in net
assets, Statement of
of cash flows

Acerual accounting
and economic
resources focus

All assets and
liabilitics financial
and capital, and
short-term, and
long-term

AH revenues and
expenses during the
year, regardless of
when cash is reccived
or paid

Instances in which
the Connty is a
trustee or agent

Statement of
NMduciary net
positian,

Statement of
changes in NMiduciary
net position

Accrual accounting
and economic
resources focus

All assets and
liabilities finuncial
and capital, and
short-term, and
long-term

All revenues and
expenses during the
year, regardless of
of when cash is
received or paid

The government-wide financial statements report information about the County as a whole using accounting
methods sitnilar to those used by private-sector businesses. The government-wide financial statements include
two statcments, the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. Fiduciary activities, whose resources
are not available to finance County programs, are excluded from these staternents. The Statement of Net Position
presents information on all of the Counly’s assets and liabilities with the difference between the two reported as
net position. Over time, increases or decreases in nef position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating. The County’s financial position increased

dnring 2018,
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Menard County, Illinois.
Management Discussion and Analysis — continued

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the
most recent [iscal year. It presents the revenues and expenses of the County with the difference betwecn the two
reported as the change in #er position for the year.

Both of these government-wide financial statements distinguish the various functions of Menard County that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities),

The governmental activities of Menard County include general government, public safety, roads and bridges,
public health, judiciary and court, county development, liability and insurance, pensions and fica, public welfare,
and interest on long-term debt,

The business-type activities include Sunny Acres Nursing Home and Countryside Estates of the County.

The govermment-wide financial statements also include legally separate component units, the Menard County
Health Department, for which the County is financially accountable, and the Aenard County 911 System. The
account balances and transactions of the Mernard County Health Department have been blended into the County’s
financial statemcnts. “Blending” is a process by which the account balances and transactions of the component
unit are reported in a manner similar to the account balances and transactjons of the primary government entity.
The account balances and transactions of the Menard County 911 System arc discretely presented in the financial
staternents. A “discrete presentation” displays the component unit’s financial information in a separate column(s)
apart from the primary government,

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The Counly like other state and local governments uses fund accounting o
cnsurc and demonstrate compliance with finance-rclated legal requircments.  All of the funds of the County are
cateporized into three distingt fund types, governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for cssentially the same functions reported as governmental activitics in
the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide statements, governmental
Junds’ financial statements only report on how general government services were financed during the year as well
what financial resources remain for future spending.

Because the focus of governmental funds’ financial statements is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for govermmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so,
financial stalement users may better understand the long-term impact of the County’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental funds' balance sheet and the governmental fund’s staiement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The County maintains individual governmental funds. Information is reported separately in the governmental
Junds’ balance sheet and in the governmental funds’ statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances for the General Fund, Liability and Insurance Fund, Emergency Medical Services Fund, Retirement
and FICA Fund, County Higlway Fund, and County Motor Fuel Tax Fund, all of which are considered to be
major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, agprepated presentation.
Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided clsewhere in this report.



Menard County, Illinois
Management Discussion and Analysis — continued

The County’s Board of Commissioners adopts an annual appropriations budget for its povernmental funds.

Budgetary comparison schedules have been provided for the General Fund and the other major funds 1o
demonstrate budpetary compliance for these funds.

Proprietary funds

The County maintains one type of proprictary funds, enlerprise funds, (or the activities the County operates like
businesses. The County uscs emierprise funds to account for the financial activitics of Sunny Acres Nursing Home
and Countryside Estates of the County.

Proprictary funds’ financial statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary funds' financial statements provide separate information for
Sunny Acres Nursing Home and Countryside Estaies af the Courty.

Fiduciary Fundy

Fiduciary funds are¢ used to account for resources held (or the bencfit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary
Jfunds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements becavse the resources of those funds are not
available to support the County’s own programs. The accounting vsed for fiduciary fimds is much like that used

for proprictary funds.

Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full undersianding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes also include information that is essential to a full

understanding of the required supplementary information.

Other information

In addition to the basic financial statements and the accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information concerning the County” schedules of budgetary comparisons, schedules of net pension
liability for its three IMRF pension plans, and progress in funding its obligations to provide pension benefits to

its employees and employer contributions.

Combining fund statements are also a part of this report,
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Management Discussion and Analysis — continued

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The table that follows presents a comparison of the County’s condensed Starement of Financiol Position as of
November 30, 2017 and 2018,

(Yo the tearest ﬂmnmnd dollurs)

Gammmem‘a!-f‘ . '*'"‘Busmeu-lype
S ACHvities R Ackivities o
2017 2018 2017 3018 2017 2018

Current ussets 8| 7,952,000 | 8,586,000 | 1 3,712,000 | 6,222,000 | § | 13,664,000 | 14,808,000 |
_Capital assets, nef 12,872,000 | 12,881,000 2,220,000 | 2,066,000 15,092,000 | 14,947,000
Pension asset, net - GO7,000 - | 1,031,000 . -1 1,638,000
“Total.assels 20,824,000 22:074,000°] | .7,932,000-| 9,319,000, | 28.756,000}:31:393.000 ]
Deferred brlflows of resotirees 1,457,000 | E110,000 486,000 | 497,000 2,143,000 | 1,607,004
Current and other liabilities 596,000 | 776,000 | | 1,221,000 | 1,469,000 1,817,000 | 2,245,000 |
Long-term debt

Installmens comtract | | 10000 | - - - 10,600 -
" Pension lability, net L4600 | - 315,000 - 1,861,000 -
- Total liabilitics ot [ AdE2,000 | 776,000: | 1,536,000.11,469000 | 3,688,000°] 2,245,000
Diefirred 0w of Fesoiraes 101,000 | 2,054,000 54,000 | 1,137,000 245,000 | 3,195,000
. Net pasition I T
Invested ii: eaplal nssets, _
oretafrelite i 12,852,000\ 12.871,000: 12,226,000 1 2,066000° 15,072,000 14,937,000:
s 5,574,000 75,968,000'] | '3,337,000]-3,35L,000. | B.911,000."9,519,000.
tUrirestricte: CTLEI2000-LSIS000: 1 1,470:000 11,594,000 |7 2,982:00 109.000;
* Total net position’: ; 519,938,000 | 20,354:000° 3 |:7,027,000°]. 7,217,000 5 | 26,965,000 27,565,000

The Targest portion of the County’s net position is reflected in its investment in capital assefs (land, buildings.
equipment, and infrastructure): less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The County uses
these capilal assets 1o provide services to citizens and others; therefore, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the County’s investment in its capitat assets is reported net of outstanding debt used to acquire
the assets it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources,
since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these linbilities,

Restricted net position represents a variety of programs, projects, services and funds that are subject to external
and internai restrictions on how they may be used. Both the County’s governmental aetivities and its business -

fype_acfivities have restricted net position.  'This means that these net assets are not available for funding the

veneral operations of the related activity,

The remaining portion of the County’s net peosition, unrestricted net position is available for funding general
operations related to the County’s governmental and business-type activities, The trend in the amonnt of the
Conrty's unrestricted net position i a leading indicator of the County’s continued ability to fund its obligations
o citizens, creditors, and others. Unrestricied net position increased $127,000 during the year. Unrestricted
net position for governmental activities increased $3,000 or .2%. Business-type activities® unrestricted net
position increased 3124,000 ar 8.44%,

The table that follows presents a comparison of the County’s condensed siatement of uctivities for the years ended
November 30, 2017 and 2018 and indicates how the net pasition changed each year.
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(in thousands of dollars)
“Governménial | | Bushness-ype.
o Aetivitiess | (v Aetivitles'y
| 2087 1 2018 2007 | 2018

ngmm rEvVENHES

cw —————— = e e = e ] - - —— — —

Charges for services § L7588 ) 1,628 | 8| 700 7,329 | §| 8858 | 8957
Grants and contributions 667 | 692 5 - 672 692
General revenues
Propertytaxes || 2,960 | 3,054 - - 2,960 | 3.054 |
Other taxes 1,969 | 2,034 - - 1,969 | 2,034
Interest 28 37 14 40 42 77
Totalreveniies A T I8N 445 SR 7369: ] [i4,50L) 14,814
Expenses
General government 5,163 | 1,230 - - 1163 | 1,250
Public safety 2,646 | 2,717 - - 2,646 2,717
Roads and bridges 1,694 1,304 | - - 1,694 | 1,304
Public health 163 167 - - 163 167
Judiciary and court | 782 684 - - 732 684
County development | | 52 :7 - - a2 31
Liability and insurance 247 ) 243 ==l 247 243
Pensions and fica 766 j66 - _.: -1 d— 7 EQ _' J;F _‘)Tﬁé |
Public welfare 83 197 - -1 83 07
Interest on long-term debt - - - - - -
| Sunny Acres Nursing Home - - 7,220 | 6,781 7,220 | 6,781
Countryside Estares - - 374 343 374 345
Total expenses 7566 | 7,089 7.5% | 7,126 15,160+ 14,215
Excess (deficiency) | | (184) | 356 (475) | 243 (659) | 599
Transfers 60| 60| (607 ooy | | - -

Tncrease (decrease) in fel position (124) | 416 | (33%)| 183

_ (659 | 394 |
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Management Discussion and Analysis — continued

Governmental Activities

Program revenues for 2018 were $2,320,000, a decrease -of $105,000 from 2017, These revenues,
consisting of charges for services and grants and coniributions, are derived from the programs
themselves and reduce the cost of the respective functions to the County, The decrease is directly related
to a nonrecurring increase in 2017 emergency medical services’ charges for services that had previously
bcen deferred.

General Tax Reventies

(General tax revenues consist of property taxes, state income taxes shared by the state of Illinois, motor fuel taxes
aliocated by the state of Illinois, local sales taxes collected by the state of lllinois and distributed to the County,
and certain other taxes. Property taxes comprised 60% of the general tax revenues and are levied by the County
within the constraints of the State of lllinois property tax limitation law to assist in funding the costs of the general
government, public safety, roads and bridges, pensions and fica, and liability and insurance programs. The
County has specific property tax levies for costs associated with certain public safety program costs, liability and
insurance, roads and bridges, county developmeni, pensions and fica, and public welfare programs in addition to
the general corporate levy. The motor fuel taxes received by the County are restricted for the roads and bridges
program. The public safety sales tuxes are restricted for emergency medical services (public safety).

The fol]owmg tables display the changes in the County’s geneml tax revenues for 2017 and 2018, and the related
changes in property taxes.

General Tax Revenues (to the nearest one hundred dollars)

2017 2018 Increase
%
Property taxes $ | 2,260,300 | 3,054,200 93,900 3.2
State income taxes 675,500 | 6579001 (17,600) | 2.6)
Muotor fuel taxes 256,200 | 307400 51,200 20.0
Public Safety Sales Tax 463,700 | 478,200 | 14,500 3.1
Sales tuxes 497,900 | 522,400 | 24,500 4.9
Other taxes 75,900 68,000 | (7,900) | (10.4)
Total 5[ 4,929,500 | 5,088,100 | 158,600 3.2%

Property Taxes by Governmental Activities’ Programs (to the nearest 100 dollars)

2017 2018 Change
General government 5 935,700 964,600 28,9200
Public safety (EMS) 328,100 ), 338,100 16,000
Roads and bridges 701,600 717,100 ) 15,500
Public health 8,300 85,800 500
County development 43,900 60,400 2,500
Liability and insurance 284,000 | 300,300 106,360
Pensions and fica 505,400 614,000 | 18,600
Public welfare 43,300 44,900 1,600
Total 3| 2,960,300 | 3,054,200 93,900
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The table that follows presents a comparison of the costs of the County’s governmental activities as well as each
activity’s ser cost (costs less charges for services, operating grants and contributions, and capital grants
contributions). The re! cost indicates the financial burden placed on the County’s taxpayers by each activity.

Cost and Net Cost Comparison of Governmental Activities

{in thousands of dollars)

|

T Total cost | | . Netcosl.

. ofdotivities - 2 | of activities”

L2017 2018 20172018

| General government |8 163 L2500 [ 8| 789 881 |

Public Safety 2,646 | 2,717 L7061 | 1,778
Roads und bridges 1694 | 1,304 1,264 | 1,063
Public health_______| | 163| 67| | | 36| 33
Judiciary and court 752 | 684 281 212
County development 32 51 2 4
Liability and insurance 247 243 247 | 243
Pensions and fica 766 | 567 766 | 567
Public welfare §3 ) 197 44 | (12)
Interest on long-term deht - - - -
“Total". | 8177566 7.090-| | § "5,140:14,769.

General government costs are incurred for the operation of certain offices and departments located in the County
courthouse and are associated with the lnancial, administrative, properly assessing, property tax extending and
collection, document recording, clection, and other peneral functions. Public safety costs are those associated
with the County Sherifl’s Department and operation of the County jail complex, Also included are the costs
associated with services provided by the County for emergency medical services including that department’s
insurancc costs and retirement costs, and the costs of providing animal control scrvices. T'he County commenced
providing emergency medical services in October 2005.

Raads and Rridges are the costs of operating the County’s Highway Department. The County utilizes several
funds to account for the Highway Department’s activitics. We experienced a significant capital contribution in
2016 for the completion ol a portion of the capital safety improvements (o the Athens blacktop.

Public Health costs are the costs of operating the Menard County Heallh Department’s programs including its
administration of the tubcreulosis program.

Judiciary and Court costs are those associated with operating the Circuit Clerk's Office, the State’s Attorney
Office, the Probation Department and the Counny's couris.

Cownty Development costs consist of certain costs pertaining to cooperative extension education, development of
a countywide geographic information system, and certain economic development costs.

Liability end Inswvance costs represent the County’s participation in the filinois Counties Risk Management Trust
for protection commonly associated with property, casualty, and workmen compensation protection as it pertains
to the County’s governmental activities. Also included arc ecrtain unemployment compensation costs.



Menard County, Hlinois
Management Discussion and Analysis — continued

Pensions and fica costs consist of the County’s required contribution to the [ifinois Municipal Retivement Fund
and FICA costs for employees involved with the County’s governmental activities ' programs.

Public Welfare costs relate to providing general assistance and emergency relief, and senior transport van services
to the County’s citizens.

Interest on long-term debt is the annual interest costs, if any, associated with the County’s peneral obligation debt
obligations.

Business-type Activities

Business-type activities increased the County’s net assets $183,000 for the year ended November 30, 2018. These
same activities produced a $536,000 decrease in net assets for 2017,

Sunny Acres Nursing Home and Countryside Estates of the County. The following chart provides a
comparison of net revenues for 2017 and 2018.

(to the nearest thousand)

2017 2018 Change
Private pay $13118200 | 8| 2,309,200 | § | (809,000)
Medicare 1,817,600 2,102,400 284,800
Medicaid 1,962,500 2,463,600 503,100
Medicaid Supplementary 214,200 310,700 96,500
Medicaid contribution (255,900) (227,800) 28,100
Total §] 6,856,000 8| 6901008 | 103,500

The following chart provides a comparison of Sunny Acres Nursing Home's resident days for 2013,
2016, 2017, and 2018.

(resident days)
2015 2016 2017 2018
Private pay 14,100 13,531 13,108 10,873
Medicare and other 3,133 3,289 2,131 2411
Medicaid 14,383 14,447 15,553 17,428
Total 31,616 | | 31,267 30,792 30,712
Annual capacity 38,090 38,796 38,690 38,690
Percent occupied 81.72% 80.59% 79.59% 79.38% -

The assets of the Inrergovernmental Transfer Fund thal were derived from administrative allowances
earned for administering an alternate Medicaid reimbursement methodology for the State of Illinois

XI



Menard County, Hiinois
Management Discussion and Analysis — continned

Depariment of Healthcare and Family Services were transferred to the Sumny Acres Nursing Home Fund
in late 2006 because the intergovernmental agreement was terminated by the Department on September
30, 2006. Administration of the alternate Medicaid reimbursement methodology became a required
activity of Sunny Aeres Nursing Home on November 1, 2006. The net assets transferred were segregated
within the Sunny Acres Nursing Home Fund and have been reserved {or capital purposes by the Menard
County Board of Commissioners. The commissioners designated that future increases in the net assets
of the Sunny Acrcs Nursing Home Fund derived from administering the alternate Medicaid
reimbursement methodology will be rescrved as a capital reserve equity component of the Sunny deres
Nursing Home Fund and designated for future capital needs. The allernate Medicaid reimbursement
methodology process was discontinued on September 30, 2009. The commuissioners have indicated that
the portion of future Medieaid reimbursements that effectively represents the administrative allowances
(Medicaid supplemcntary) earncd and collccted through the alternate reimbursement process will be
designated as capital reserve.

Countryside Estates of the County, the County’s independent living facility, operated profitably {or 2017 and
2018.

The following table provides a summary comparison of the County's business-(ype activities results for 2017 and
2018.
Business-type activities results

(m !Iwusandc af doﬂars)

.“_.S_':'u":'i‘z‘jfﬂcﬂ.. Niirsin "'1Home Fi uud

C'ﬂpll‘m' Reverve .' Cmmtr_v.nde
P _ C'ompmmnr .j_'ET!'ﬂfeS TR tﬁe
e L e " : . County Fund
2017 2018 201 7 20}8 2017 | 2018
Net revenive $ 0,504 6,604 | 5 - - 8 410 354 $16914 | 7,018
Contribufions i 4 - - - - - 4 -
Interest 12 8 IT; 30 2 211 25 40
inconte ) .
‘Expenses | | 7044 | 6470 - - 375 | 345 7419 | 6,815
“Transfers, net | | (197) (371) 218 310 sn | T [ w0 s
"a:;;;;:q et 8| (720 | (169) 812200 30| S| @4y 12 ] |8 [(536)] 183

Component Units

The Menard County 211 System’s net position increased from $363,000 10 $428,000 during the year. Net position
was $795,000 in 2010, The net position is meant to be accumulated for financing future capilal asset and
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infrastructure needs. 911 services for the County began in 2007.

The public’s discontinuing use of land-based telephone lines is hampering the system’s ability 1o maintain
revenues. A recent Illinois Attorney General’s opinion suggests that the sponsoring units of local government for
911 systems are fiscally responsible for such systems.

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

We noted earlier that the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements,

Governmerntal Funds

The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. This information is useful in assessing the County’s financing requirements.
Unreserved fund balances may serve as a leading indicator of a government’s nef resources available for spending
at the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the County’s governmental fumds reported combined ending fund balances
of $7,895,000. Of this amount, $27,000 is in non-spendable form; nothing is committed for future spending;
$6.520,000 is restricted and assigned for future specific purposes such as roads and bridges, public safety,
retirement costs, and insurance and liability costs. The remaining amount, $1,348,000, the unassipned amount of
fund balance of the County’s General Fund, is available for funding future general operations and obligations.

The General Fund is the County’s principat operating fund and is used to account for general operations. The
fund balance of the General Fund at November 30, 2018 was $1,515,000 with $27,000 in non-spendable form and
$140,000 committed for employce health insurance funding and other purposes.

The Liability and Insurance Fund is used 10 account for the annual property tax for the payment of the costs
associated with our govermmental activities’ property and casualty risk management activities including
workman's compensation; and self-insured unemployment compensation costs. The fund balance of this fund
increased $57,000 to $635,000 in 2018.

The Emergency Medical Services Fund is used to account for the revenues and the costs of providing emergency
medical services in the County. It had a fund balance of $786,000 at November 30, 2018. We have improved the
financial viability of this vital County service with increased property tax funding within the confines of the State’s
property tax limilation laws, and effective cost management. The level of fund balance allows us to carry a
significant amount of accounts receivable at certain times during the year, and effectively save for the cventual
substantial replacement costs of our ambulance fleet and other equipment needs.

- The Retirement and FICA Fund is used to account for the collection of the levies for the funding and payment
of the County’s contribution to the IMRF pension plans and the employer’s portion of FICA and related costs. It
had a combined fund balance of $956,000 at November 30, 2018.

The County Highway Fund is the Highway Department’s general operating fund. It had a fund balance of
$735,000 at November 30, 2018.

The County Motor Fuel Tax Fund had a fund balance of $334,000 at November 30, 2018. The balance for this
fund is restricted for future road and bridge project and maintenance spending in accordance with project budpets
approved by the County Board of Commissioncrs and the Illinois Department of Transportation,

The remaining nonmajor governmental funds reported 2 combined fund balance of $2,934,000 at November 30,
2018.
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Proprietary Funds

The County’s propriefary fund financial statements provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. Proprictary funds consist of both enterprise and internal
service funds. Our enterprise funds are essentially our business-type activities.

The enterprise funds’ unrestricted net position at November 30, 2018 was $1,594,000 as compared to $1,671,000
at November 30, 2017. Factors concerning the finances of these funds are discussed in the business-type activities
section of this discussion and anafysis.

Fiduciary Funds

There were no significant changes in the operations of the fiduciary funds during the year ended November 30,
2018.

Major funds’ badgetary highlighty

The General Fund budpeted for a decrease in the fund balance of $430,000 for the year ended November 30,
2018. The actual fund balance increase for the year was $3,000.

Revisions (individual line changes) to the original budget during the year were minimal and nominal, Budgeted
revenues did not change, and of course total budgeted expenditures and transfers out remained the same during
the year.

Actual revenues were $83,000 more than budgeted revenues. Actual expenditures were $344,000 less than
budgeted amounts. Actual net transfers out, were $6,000 less than what was budgeted,

The Liabitity and Insurance Fund’s fund balance increased $57,000. We budgeted for a $4,000 decrease.

The Emergency Medical Services Fund’s fund balance decreased $4,000. We budgeted a decrease of $243,000.
The Retirement and FICA Fund’s fund balance increased $126,000. The budgeted increase was $174,000.

The Hightway Fund’s fund balance increased $36,000. A $804,000 decrease was budgeted.

The County Motor Fuel Tax Fund's fund balance increased $32,000. A $77,000 decrease was budgeted.

The above funds are presented as major by definition and because of the intcrest and perspective of the County’s
residents,

The actual resuits for the County’s nonmajor gevernmental funds were consistent with the County’s Board of
Commissioners and managements’ expectations documented in the County’s annual budget for the fiscal year
ended November 30, 2018. A few nonmajor funds’ actual expenditures nominally exceeded budgeted amounts.
These funds and the excess amounts are listed in Note 2 to the basic financial statements.

A management budget is prepared each year for the two enterprise fimds that comprise the County’s business-
type activities. The County Board of Commissioners’ and management’s expectations for Sunny Acres Nursing

Home and Countryside Estates of the County results of operations are always greater than what is documented in
the management budgets for those operations.
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Capitai Asset and Long-Term Debt

Capital Assets

At November 30, 2018, the County had invested $14,900,000 in a broad range of capital assets including land,
buildings and improvements, equipment vehicles, infrastruciure (roads and bridges) and construction in progress.

The following lable provides a comparison of the County’s capital assels al November 30, 2017 and 2018,

(net‘ aj depreciation in thrmmnds of daollars)

This year’s major capital assets additions included-

v Public Safety vehicles and equipment $490,000

Govemmeu!a! ‘ '.".'Busmess-{ype

L Activities f- : Acrii?itms. : g dotal

2kl 2008 L A2007 5 2008 | 2007 v 2008

Land 5 308 0818 - SEENTT 308
Consiruction in progress 178 178 - - 178 178
Buildings and improvements 1,292 L2I7 2,083 1,965 3,375 3,182
Equipment i22 330 137 104 259 437
Velicley 402 520 - - 402 520
Roads 7,519 7,331 - - 7,519 7,331
Bridges 3,031 299 | | - - 3,051 2,996
Total 5| 12872 12880 1% | 2,220 2,066 |5 | 15092 | 14,946

The table thai follows provides a comparison of depreciation expense by County programs for 2017 and 2018.

(o the nearest one hundred dollars)

2007 2018 Change
Governmentil activities
| General government 64,200 68,700 | 5 4,560
Public safety 151,900 196,700 44,800
Roads and bridges 316,704 312,200 (4,300) |
Public health 1,300 600 {700)
Judiciary and court ) 32,7060 34,200 1,500
Public welfare &200 17,300 2,300
Total povernmental activities 575,000 | 629,900 4,000
Business-type activities -
Sunny Acres Nursing Home 197,300 164,900 | (32,400)
Countryside Estates of the County 78,704 78,3500 (200)
| Total Business-type activities 276,000 243400 | (32,600)
Total povernment-wide 851,000 873,300 % 223 0
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Long-Term Debt

At the end of the year, the County’s long-term debt consisted solely ol one installment contract for public safety
equipment of $10,000 for our governmental activities. We borrowed $100,000 through the Ilhineis Finance
Authority in 2009 to assist us in purchasing a replacement ambulance for our fleet. ‘I'he acquisition cost was
$138,000 and we owed $10,000 on this obligatien at the cnd 2018.

Employee Retirement Benefit Plans

The County sponsors three defined benefit pension plans for County employees through the 1llinots Municipal
Retirement Fund (IMRF). IMRF is an agent multiple employer pension plan that acts as a common investment
and administrative agent for local governments and school districts in 1llinois. Detailed information and data for
the County’s pension plans are provided in the notes to the hasic financial statements and in the required
supplementary information section of this annual financial report. The notes also include a discussion of the
deferred compensation plans the County sponsors for its employees.

We mentioned in the Financial Highlights section that the County implemented new accounting and financial
reporling standards for pensions in 2015. This implementation has had a significant impact on our governmeni-
wide and proprietary funds financial statements. The net financial status of our pension plans has vacillated
between a net asset and a net liability condition.

We have, over the years, always contributed the annual required contribution to the three IMRF pension plans.
The County does not contribute to the deferred compensation plans.

Economic Factors and 2019

% Wc continuc to remain quite aware of the overarching nature of the ongoing State of Tllinois® “budget and
fiscal crisis” and the potential for its ultimate resolution to negatively impact the future financial results
of several of our individual funds including but not limited to our General Fund, the Health Department
Fund, Sunny Acres Nursing Home Fund, and certain Highway Department Funds. State shared income
taxes account for approximately 22% of the General Fund's revenues and salary reimbursements from
the Statc of lllinois and our component unit provide another 13%. We are also cognizant of the ncgative
impact to us of the ongoing “zero interest rate” policics of the Federal Rescrve on our interest earnings
and the ability to accumulate adequate reserves for funding future capital assets needs for our
povernmental activitics, We arc grateful and appreciative for the ongoing State of 1llinois funding through
the Illinois Department of 'I'ransportation of most of the construction costs of our major road and bridge
replacement projects.

% Because of the State of [llinois”™ “budget and fiscal crisis”, we expect to continue having a concentration
of credit with the State of Illinois periodically during 2019 and subsequent years while the state struggles
with and resolve its ongoing cash flow problems. This condition, at times, slows down the flow of cash
to fund our consistent and recurring costs of operations.  This slow down and resulting concentration of
credit with the State of Itlinois can negatively impact cash fows of several funds including the General
Fund, the Health Department Fund, and the Sunny Acres Nursing Home Fund. Fortunately, we have had
adequate reserves to carry these concentrations of credit; however, our ability to replenish the reserves
has been diminishing over the last several years.

*#* The State of Iliinois has approved rules and procedures for the quarterly remittances of a portion of the

annual Medicaid revenues for Sunny Acres Nursing Home. This arrangement was previously approved

by the Federal govermment, However, it seems that one ol the unintended consequences of the recent

Medicare/Medicaid Alignment Initiative that is mandated to extend managed carc to 2 minimum of 50%

of the State of lllinois long term care population is that it was determined that the Federal govermment
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Menard County, llinois
Management Discussion and Analysis — continued

will not allow funding arrangements that provided for the quarlerly remittances. The State of Ilinois
Department of Healtheare and Family Services has indicated that it has every intention of finding a way
of continuing the quarlerly remitlance arrangement; such funds continue {0 be collected and we expect
that to continue during 2019. It is this revenue, once collected, that we have retained and designated as
capital reserve by the Sunny Acres Nursing Home Fund, Since 2007, $900,000 of the approximately
$4.2 million collecied has been used (o fund certain Sunny Acres capital asset acquisitions and 3200,000
has been loaned to Sunny Acres’ operations for interim cash flow needs.

We have budeeted a $300.000 permanent transfer from the Sunny Acres’ capital reserve component to

Sunny Acres’ gperations component to fund budpeted capilal asset replacements/improvements during
2019, Also, we expect that capital reserve funds will be nceded from time to time by operations, on a

temporary basis, (o offset polential delays in the collection of Medicare and Medicaid reimbursements.

The commissioners arc also aware of the need for a permanent transfer of capital Feserve funds to offsct
the cumulative decreases in operations’ working capital that_has ocourred over the last several vears as
a_conscqucnee of operations’ net losses and certain capital asset replacement costs.  Sunny Acrcs’
occupancy has been hovering around 80% for scveral years now.

Additional repairs and improvements to the courthouse are expected to continue into 2019. We have
been fortunate during the past decade to be able o fund the costs of extraordinary improvements to the
courthouse without issuing debt and or increasing real estaie taxes QOur ability to fund such costs from
operations” results has been greatly diminished during the last decade as ane of the consequence of the
continued low money market rate environment.

Requests for Information

The County’s annual financial report is designed to provide our ¢itizens, investors and creditors with the general
overview of the County’s finances. 1f you have questions about this report or need additional information, please
contact the Menard County Treasurer's Office at the County Courthouse.
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

November 30, 2018

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Unit
ASSETS
Cash $ 4,923,742 $ 1,128,308 $ 6,052,050 $ 91,178
Certificates of deposit 2,925,000 1,002,000 3,927,000 150,000
Accounts receivable, net 120,904 ) 896,514 1,017,418 103,745
Taxes receivable, net 228,930 - 228,930 -
Due from other funds 168,289 - 168,289 -
Internal balances (21,601) 21,601 - -
Inventories 240,938 13,119 254,057 -
Restricted cash - 1,411,347 1,411,347 -
Restricted certificates of deposit - 1,750,000 1,750,000 -
Land 308,404 - 308,404 -
Capital assets, net 12,572,567 2,065,789 14,638,356 192,819
Pension asset, net 606,884 1,030,746 1,637,630 -
TOTAL ASSETS 22,074,057 9,319,424 31,393,481 537,742
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals 1,110,052 497,222 1,607,274 -
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 630,693 1,090,176 1,720,869 -
Accrued compensation 34,527 218,870 253,397 -
Prepayments and deposits - 160,321 160,321 -
Unearned revenue 90,886 - 90,886 -
Due to other funds 10,000 - 10,000 -
Debt payable within one year 10,000 - 10,000 31,781
Debt payable after one year - - - 77,500
Pension liability, net - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 776,106 1,469,367 2,245,473 109,281
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals 2,054,126 1,136,506 3,190,632 -
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 12,870,971 2,065,789 14,936,760 83,538
Restricted for -
Roads and bridges 2,605,319 - 2,605,319 -
Public safety 728,900 - 728,900 -
Judiciary and court 375,839 - 375,839 -
Liability and insuranee 635,461 - 635,461 -
Pensions and fica 618,481 391,462 1,009,943 -
Public health 75,465 - 75,465 -
Other 928,011 3,159,603 4,087,614 -
Unrestricted 1,515,429 1,593,919 3,109,348 344,923
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 20,353,876 $ 7,210,773 $ 27,564,649 $ 428,461

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

NOVEMEER 30, 2018

Total fund balances - governmental funds

Amuounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets
are different because -

Inventories of rock, sand, gravel, and other materials used
Tor roads’ and bridges’ construction and maintenance are not

financial resources and, thercfore, are not reported in the funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources,
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds -

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current peried and
are not reported in the funds. Those liabilitics consist of -

Accounts payable for road and bridge projecis and other nct items

Long-term debt

Certain pension activity (inclcuding long - term asset/ liability, deferred outflows

and deferred inflows) is not used or reported in the funds

Net assets of governmental activities

The aceompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.

$ 7,894,781

240,938

12,880,971

(315,623)

(10,000)

(337,191)
3 20,353,876



MENARD COUNTY, ITLINOIS

STATEMENT OF REVENULS AND LXFENDITURES AND CIIANGES 1N FUND RBALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

REVENLES
Property taxes
Pullic anlety sules tax
Fedornl and Sinde payments
TFinoa, Teca, Tarfoitures nnd licenses
Chnrges Tor services
Other
nterest

Totul revengses

EXPENDITURES

Currentz
Cieneral povernment
I"ublic snfety
Roads and bridges
Poblic health
Judicinry and eourt
Crunly devplopment
Linbility wnd insurance
Peusgians wnid i
Pulilic wellire

Debi service;
Principal relicomend
Intorest and fincal charpes

Caplial owilny:

Total expenditures

EXCESS REYENUES OVER
{UNDER) EXPFENDITURLES

OTHER FINANCING 50URCES
{LS05)
Operating iranafers in
Opcrating Iransfers {out}
Toiol piher financing sources and uses
NET CHANGES 1IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES - REGINNING

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

NOVEMBER 30, 2018

Linlikity Emergeney Coeuney

ang Mecdlicnl Retirement County Mutor Fuel Other Toinl
General Insurance Services and FICA Highway T Guvernmental — Gavernmenial

Funi} Fuoml Fund Fynd Fyl Fungl Funds Funidx
£ 644607 & 30ndae $ 338,005 % el4,021 £ 192,008 -3 . % 554,850 £ 3,064,020
- - d78,128 - - - - 478,218
LS0R. 271 - 25508 21,485 - 307,382 193,671 1,057,018
380,909 r " . - - 154,801 £35,710
128467 - 526,644 129,264 - 102 464 DHE,BES
36,873 - 116,636 10,008 - 54,318 217835
23431 - 1,840 - 10,508 an 1z 26,613
3043 458 ann33o 1.4H6,95] 635506 541848 07,705 _ L.hs0238 7,376,285
1,121,928 - - - - - 7005 1,192,233
1.236,716 - 1143650 - - - B1.547 2461913
- - - - 526233 275,550 183,870 G88, 780
- - - - - - 166,43 166,431
A05.580 - - - - - 53,865 649,754
6,150 - - - - - 19912 #6162
- 143,119 - - - - - 4319
- - - S0G15 - - - 509,615
- - - - - - 88282 BHI8Z
- - [LEET - - - . 10,000
_mew L TWm . S - 07976 68018
2,004,572 143,019 1,423,772 S5 577462 115,554 02,288 6,820,384
43186 £7.214 63,170 125,801 {35,574} 22149 257,050 540,001
162945 . . . . - 280,961 443,507
(200,054) - {66,708) - - - (107,945) (383,007)
{46,109 : {66,008) - - - 173,017 60,000
14977 571U 3,719 115,391 {35574} 12,149 430,367 00,11
1,512,453 578,241 ‘TR, 053 829,774 PRl A 301,403 1,500 K45 7284, 480
% 1,515,429 % 63546) 5 7HG2M § 055,667 3 TI596 3 331,552 5 2,933,857 £ 7.494.781

The acevmpanying niley are an integral pan of this financinl satcment.

]



MENARD COUNTY, [LLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF THE CHANGES (OF FUND BALANCES OF GOVYERNMENTAL FUNDS
TOTHE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIFS

NOVEMBER 30, 2018

Net changes in funds balances - total governmental funds 3 609,90

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because -

Some capital grant proeceds are received "in kind" and therefore are not reported
as financial resources in the funds 55,108

Debrt proceeds are reported as financing sources in governmental funds and thus
contribute to the change in fund balance. In the statement of net assets,
however, issuing debt increases long-term liabilities and docs not affect the
statement of activities. Similarly, repayment of debt principal is an expenditure
in the governmental funds but reduces the liability in the statement of net assets.

Repayments:
Instaliment contracts for Public Safcty vehicle and cquipment purchascs 10,000

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However,
in the statement of activitics, the cost of the capital assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense -

Capital outlays % 463,016
Depreciation expense (629,908)

Excess of depreciation cxpense over capital outlay {166.,892)

Some costs do nat require the use of current financial resources
and are not reported as expenditures in the fund financial statements
but must be included in the povernment-wide financial statements
as txpenses -

Decrease in inventories of rock, sand, and gravel (35,830)

Only a portion of the pension expense (IMRF) related to actual payments is reported
in the Governmental funds. Additional {(expense) income activity should be included

in the Statement of Activities

(87.177)

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 415,710

[



ASSETS
Current:

{ash

Cerlilicates of deposit

Accounts receivable, net

Dug rom other fands

Due from cipital reserve component

[mventories

Ttestricted:
Cnsh
Certifleates ol depasit
Accounts receivable, nel
Nue from eapieal reserve component
Due from operations component

Totu) current nsscis

Non-current:
Capital assets - nel
Pension asset

Total ngn-current asscls

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Fension deferraly

TOT@L DEFERRED QOUTIFLOWS OF RESOURCESR

LIABILITIES
Current
Acoounts payable
Accrucd compensation
Residents' prepayments, overpayments, and deposits
Due te operalions component
Due tn capital reserve component
Due to other Fands

Total current liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assety
Other restricied
Umrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

The accompanyiog nofes are an inggral part of this financial stalemend,

MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOILS
FROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF KEF POSITION

NOVEMBER 30, 2018

Enterprise Funds

Sunny Acres Nursing Home Fund {Countryside Total
Operations Capital Reserve Fyiates of the Enterprise
Companent Component ‘I'atal County Fumd Funds

% 447,861 g - s K7, 461 3 640,347 % 1,128,308
177000 - 777,000 125,000 1,002,000
492,721 2,730 495,457 1,457 RY96,514
21601 - 21,601 - 2146401

12,311 - 12,311 2UR 13,119

- 1,411,347 1,411,347 - 1,411,M7

- 1,750,000 1,750,000 - 1,750,000

4,480 - 4,480 - 4,480

- 200,262 208,262 - 200,262

195974 3364345 K560,319 67,312 6,427,431
1,312,733 - 132,733 153,056 2,065,709
1,030,746 - 1,030,746 - 1,030,746
2,343,479 - 2,343,479 753,056 3,096,535
4,510,453 3,364,345 6,873,052 1,620,368 0,524,166
4o L 97,222 - 497,212
497,222 - 497,222 - 497,112
1,080,234 - 1.080.934 9,241 1,090,176
218,810 - 218.870 - 218,870
154,436 - 154,436 5,485 160,321

- 4,480 4,460 - 4,480

200,262 - 2(4),262 - 200,262

o lesdsnr __ 4480 L6SRIRZ 15,127 1,674,109
1,134,506 - 1,136,506 - 1,136,506
1,136,506 - 1,136,506 - 1,136,504
1,312,733 - 1,312,733 751,056 2,065,789
391,462 3,359,805 3,751,327 - 3751,317
541,47} - 1472 852,185 1,393,657

8 2,245,667 b 2,259,865 3 5,605,532 % 1,005,241 5 7,210,773

T



NET OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages
Contractual nursing
Retirement cosis
Therapy costs
[Food and dictary supplies
Medical and nursing assistance and supplics
Insurance and risk management
Manuagement fec
Depreciation
Maintenance and repairs
itilitics
Housckeeping and lundry supplies
Professional fees
FProvider participation lee
Advertising
Administration and other costs
Provision for bad debts

Taotal operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Contributions
Interest income
Interest expense

Non-opereting revenues (expenses)

NET INCOME (LOSS)
TRANSFERS IN
TRANSFERS (OUT)

NET TRANSFERS IN {OUT)
CHANGE INNET POSITION

NET POSITION - REGINNING

TOTAL NET POSITION - ENDING

MENARD COUNTY, TLLINOIS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSLES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 218

Enterprise Funds

Sunny Acres Nursing Hlome Fund Countryside Tatal
Operations Capital Reserve listates of the Enterprise
Component Comporent Total County Fund Funds

5 6,004,222 b - 5 6,664,222 ¥ 351,958 % 7,01K,180
1,860,031 - 2,864,031 99917 1,959,948
207874 - 27,874 - 207,874
315,287 - 319,247 15,371 334,658
1,204,444 - 1,204,444 - 1,204,444
254,2R6 - 254,286 35,145 252,431
170,616 - 170,616 - 1616
30427 - 319,827 35,273 355,100
313,678 - J13.678 16.2%7 320,975
164,922 - 164,322 7851 243,454
99,337 - 99,337 27337 126,674
180,683 - 180,683 29.202 209,885
54,499 - 54,499 1,165 56,6604
65,307 680 45,987 3,054 49,041
58,035 - 58.105 - 58,005
11,391 - 21,391 - 11,39
127,497 - 127,497 2814 130,311
48,000 - 48,00 - 48,000
6,469,714 680 6,470,394 345,107 6,415,501
194,508 (68 193,428 8451 202,479
410 - 410 - 410
T,615 30,391 ELEIIG 1,216 40,222
B 25 30,331 Al 2,214 40,632
202,533 29.7111 232,244 11,067 243,311
- 310,724 30,724 415 311,149
(371,149 - {371,149 - (371,149
(371,149) 310,724 (60,425) 415 (60.000)
{164,614) 340,435 171,819 1,492 183311
2,414,243 3,019,430 5,433,713 1,593,749 7,027,462
F 2,245,667 g 3,350,465 § 5,605,532 b 1,605,141 5 7210773

The uecompanying notes are an integral part of this inancial statement.



MENARD COUNTY, ILLINDIS
STATEMENT OF CASFI FLAOWS
IROPRIETAKRY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDETy NOVEMBEK 30, 201%

Enlerprise Fundy

Sunny Acres ng Home Fond _l'_"mlﬁﬁe- 7T Toml
Operadions Capital Reserve Esintes of the Enlerprise
[ Cumponent Tatal County Fund Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Mel cash received for resident enre and hiealth ¢ore 5 6,501,783 5 - 5 40,501,783 -3 254,236 5 nASGOEY
Paymentt th supplicrs and athers {3.152,705) - {3,182,705) {165,443} {32401 48)
Faymenls toe employees __12M87IR) = (Re36T3) 0 _(WHIT) | (JD3R655)
Net cash provided (used) by opernfing aelivilies . L N - . -1 o | .. _ERMTe _ _ATLIMG
CASH FLOWS FHOM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Contributions reczived 410 = 410 - 410
MNet eash provided (nsed) by non-capital
aperating activitics 414 - 410 - 419
CASI FLOWS FROM CAFITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers in - 310,734 HOTid 425 ML149
Tranafers vut (37M,149) - (3,149 . (371,149)
Capital assel ncquisitions (78,521} - {78,542) {19,548) #9.110)
Certificntes of deposit maturitles 717000 1,750,000 . 1527000 135,000 2,751,000
Certificnies of dtposit purchmsed 7700} {1.730,000) (2,527.000) (225,000} (2,752,000)
Advance from eapital reserve companent and or niher funds - - B . .
Aslypnge (o) Trem aperntions component and or other funds . 55,233 55,233 - 65,233
Residenty' peepaynents, overpnyments, and depashix 21649 - 21,649 4,500) 17,040
Net enth provided (usal) by eapital and relaied
financing activitics {428,022} 375,957 {52,065} (14,672) {66,737)
CASH FLDOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received £,749 19,053 35,803 2.158 31,960
Mel eash pravided (wacd) by investing activilics 6,749 29,053 25,802 LASE 37.9¢0
NET INCREASE {DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH FQUIVALENTS {38,513) 445,010 366,487 THIG2 342849
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -BEGINNING OF YEAR 528,384 £,006,327 1,532,711 544,085 1,096,806
CASH AND CASU EQUIVALENTS - ENINOF YEAR ¥ 447,561 5 1,411,347 5 1,899,108 3 a4 ¥ ¥ 1,539,655
NON-CASI TRANSACTIONS
Pengion lncome 5 74,304 3 - 74,304 5 - 5 T304
NET EFFECT OF NON2CASH TRANSACTIONS 3 74,304 3 - b3 74,5114 ] - £ T4 304

The aceompunying noteg ure an dntegeal part of this financial sinlemeni.

]



MENARD COLINTY, ILLINDIS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMEBER 340, 2018

RECONCILIATION OF PERATING INCOME
T NET CASH PROVIDED BY OOFERATING ACTIVITIES

Entcrprisc Funds

Sunny Acres Nurxing Home Fund Conniryside Total

Operations Capital Reserve Fsinates al the Enterprise
_Companent  _ Companenl____Total __CountyFeed _ Fonds |

OFERATING INCOME (LOSS) .4 194,508 g 111401 1 193,828 & A,881 5 I0%679

ADMUSTMENTS TO RECGNCILE QPERATING INCOME (L.OSE)
TOMNET CASIH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Depreciatian 164,922 - 144,922 78,531 243,454
ensien (income) cxpensc (74.304) - {74,304} - (74204)
[Ineraase) decreasn in nccannis receivnble {114,439 - (114,439) pal’) {11460

{Increane) decrease in inventaries 2,400 - 2,404 1,135 3,535
tIacrense) decrease in duc from other Crnnty Funds (2),251) - {20.951) - {20.951)

(Decranse) incrénse in necownis poeynble a2 . kA LU 307,792

{Decrense] incrense in due to operations component {680) 680 - - -
{Deerensc) incrense in nocryed compensntion (74,707} - {76,707} . [76.707)
{Drerenac) increase in due to oilier County Funds (121) - {121) - {121]

Met cnsh provided by operating netivitics ] 382,340 ] - 5 382,340 b1 /Y. 876 5 471714

The Atcoatipuiying snles ure an infegral part of 1his finnneid stalement,

|



MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
NOVEMBER 30, 2018
Private-purposec Agency
Trust Funds Funds
ASSETS
- Cash $ 221,430 $ 804,816
Receivables 44 176,683
Due from other funds 294 10,701
Capital assets, net - -
Other - 91,986
Total assets 221,768 1,084,186
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 433 -
Due to road districts - 553,327
Due to taxing districts - 1,838
Due to others - 359,737
Due to other funds - 169,284
Total liabilities 433 1,084,186

NET POSITION
Held in trust for -
Individuoals, organizations, and
other governments $ 221,335 5 -

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of this financial statement,
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2018

Private-purpose

Trust Funds
ADDITIONS
Fines, fees, and forfeitures 5 53,072
Charges for services -
Contributions -
Other -
Interest 848
Total additions 53,920
DEDUCTIONS
County law library 1,570
Investigations and training -
Operating expenses 35,815
Depreciation -
Total deductions 37,385
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 16,535
NET POSITION-BEGINNING 204,800
NET POSITION-ENDING $ 221,335

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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1.

MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended November 30, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

GENERAL STATEMENT

Menard County (County) is an Illinois municipal corporation. Primary governance is by a five-
member elected board of commissioners holding both legislative and some executive powers.
Other officials elected by voters of the County; Circuit Clerk, SherifT, States Attorney, County
Clerk, Assessor, Treasurer, also hold some executive powers. Although these elected officials
manage the internal operations of their respective departments, the Board of Commissioners
authorizes cxpenditures as well as serves as the budget and taxing authority, contracting body,
and the chiel administrators of both the County’s governmental and business-type activities,

The County’s financial statements are presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as applied to state and local governments. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing accounting and
financial reporting principles for stale and local governments. What follows, are the County’s
more significant accounting policies.

FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

These financial statements present the County (the primary government) and its component units
and inelnde all funds and aecounts of all County operations.

Two entities have heen considered for inclusion in the County’s financial statements. An.overview
of each entity and the consideration of financial accountability are discussed below. Management
believes that only one of these entitics, the Menard County 211 System, should be included in the
County’s financial statements as a discretely presenled component unit. A "diserete presentation"
displays the component unit's financial information in a separate column(s) apart from the
primary government. The account halances and transactions of the other component unit, the
Menard County Healtlh Department have heen hlended into the County’s financial statements.
“Blending” is a proeess by which the account balances and transactions of the component unit are
reported in a manner similar to the account balances and transactions of the primary government
entity.

Menard County 911 System- Residents of Menard County established the County’s emergency
telephone system in November 2002 when a referendum was approved authorizing the Menard
County Board of Commissioncrs to impose a $3.25 monthly surcharge on the billed subscribers of
911 network connection telecommunications carriers who provide such services (o their Menard
County customers. The County has cstablished the Menard County Emergency Telephone Systems
Board, The Board’s power and duties have been defined by county ordinance and include planning
the 911 system; coordinating, supervising, and implementation; fiscal responsibilities; and
personnel decision-making. The financial statements of the Menard County 911 System are
included in the County’s financial statemcents because of the degree of physical eontrol exercised
by the County; the Menard County Board of Commissioners appoints ail the Board’s membhers.
It is presented as a “discretely presented component unit* to emphasize that

13



MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
Notes to Financial Statemenys — Continucd

it is a component unit legally separate from the County. Separate audited financial statements are
not prepared.

Menard County Health Department- The account balances and transactions of the Menard County
Healtlt Department arc included in the County’s financial statements because it is fiscally
dependent on the County. Separate audited financial statements arc not prepared.

The cost of operating the Logan-Mason-Menard Educational Service Region is apportioned among
the three counties, Logan, Mason, and Menard bascd on each respective county’s aggregate
cqualized assessed valuation used fur property tax levies. Separate audited financial statements
are on file with the Menard County Clerk. Operating surpluses and deficits partially accrue to
Menard County; however, becanse Logan County provides more than fifty percent of the Region's
support, the accounts of the Region are not included in Menard County's financial statements.

The County’s Board of Commissioners appoints the board members of scveral related
organizations in the County. These orpanizations do not have a financial benefit/burden
relationship with the County and arc not required to be included in the County’s financial
statements. The County’s accountahility for these organizations (road districts, fire protection
districts, drainage districts and cemetery districts) does not extend beyond making the
appointments,

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net position and the siatement of
activities) report financial information on all the County’s activities, except for fiduciary activitics.
Eliminations have been made to eliminate the double counting of certain internal transactions for
reimbursements of retirement costs, insurance costs and funel costs.

Governmental activities, which are primarily supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and
other non-cxchange transactions, are separately reported from business-tvpe activities, which are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of net position presents the County’s assets, and deferred outilows of resources; and
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position in three
distinct categories -

Invested in capital assets, net of relaled debtf — consists of capital assets, net of accumulated

depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances for bonds and other debt attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of thosc assets.

Restricted net positions - result from limitations imposed on their use either through enabling
legislation adopted by the County or through external restrictions imposcd by ereditors, grantors,
or laws or regulations of other governments.

Unrestricted net position — is the net position that remains after the County’s net position has been
classified between invested in capital assets net of related debt and restricted net position.

It is the County’s policy to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for
purposes for which beth restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

14



MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
Notes to Basic Financial Statements - Continned

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
program/activity are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
ilentifiable with a specific program. Program revenues consists of 1) fees, fines, and charges paid
by the recipients of goods and services offered by the programs and 2) grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a program. Revenues that
are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues,

The County segregates transactions related to certain funclions or activitics in separatc funds to
aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. The fund financial statemenis
provide information about these funds, including its fiduciary funds and blended component units.
Separate fund financial statements are provided for each fund category — governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary., The emphasis on fund financial statements is on major governmental
and proprietary funds (enferprise) each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
governmental aud, proprietary funds, if any, arc aggregated and presented in a single column as
non-major fund.

Fiduciary funds are excluded from the goverument-wide financial statements hecause those funds’
assets are held hy the County in a trustee or agency capacity for others and generally cannot be
used to support the County’s programs.

Governmental funds are those funds through which most governimental programs are financed.
The measurement focus of governmental funds is on the sources, uses and balances of current
financial resources. The County has presented the following major governmental funds —

General Fund — This is the County’s main operating fund. This fund is used te account for all
financial resources not accounted for in other funds. All general tax revenues and other revenues
that are not restricted by law or contractual agrecement to some other fund are accounted for in
this fund. General operating expenditures, fixed charges, and capital improvement costs not
disbursed through other funds are disbursed from the General Fund.

Liability and Insurance Fund — This fund is nsed to account for the annnal tax for the payment of
the governmental activities’ property and casualty risk management, including funding of self-
insured unemployment compensation costs.

Emergency Medical Services Fund — This fund is used to account for the operations related to
providing emergency medical services throughout the County, primarily ambulance service. This
incIndes the levy and collection of the annual preperty tax for ambulance service, all the public
safety sales tax revenues, and the user charges collected to fund these services.

Retirement and FICA Fund — This fund is used to account for all the financial resources and
expeuditures for contributing to IMRF pension plans and FICA., Revenues primarily consist of
two annual property tax levics,

County Highway Fund — This fund is used to account for the levy and collection of the annual
property tax for maintaining and improving the County’s roads. It is also used to account for
other financial resources that are not restricted by law or contractual agreement to some other
County highway fund.




MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS

Nores to Basic Financial Statements - Continned

County Motor Fuel Tax Fund — This fund is used to account for the receipt of motor fuel taxes
allotted to the County to be retained and used for the construction and maintenance of State and
County roads and bridges and other projects. All expenditures from this fund require the
approval of the 1llinois Department of Transportation and the County’s Board of Commissioners.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and the
acernal basis of accounting. The accounting objectives are determinations of net income, financial
position, and cash flow. AH assets and liabilities are included on the staternent of net position. The
County bas presented the Following major proprietary funds —

Sunny Acres Nursing Home Fund — This enterprise fund is used to account for the operations of the
County’s nursing home (long-term care facility), Sunny Acres Nursing Home.

Countryside Estates of the County Fund — This enterprise fund is used to account for the operations
of the County's independent living facility, Countryside Estates aof tie County.

These two funds are the County’s only proprietary funds, where the intent of the governing body is
that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods and serviees to the public and,
internally, on a continuning basis, he financed or recovered through charges for those goods or
services.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses {rom non-operating items.
Operating revenucs and expenses result {rom providing services and delivering goods in
connection with the proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses for the
proprietary funds include the cost of personal and contractual services, supplies, depreciation on
capital assets and other costs. All revennes and expenses not meeting this definition are reported
as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The County uses both agency and private purpose (rust funds for its fiduciary activities. Agency
Junds are used to account for property taxes, fees, fines, and other monics coliecied on the behalf
of other governments, and other entities and individuals. Private purpose trust funds are nsed to
report all other trust arrangements under which prineipal and income benefit other governments,
and individuals. Separate fund financial statements arc provided for the fiduciary funds even
though they arc excluded from the govermment-wide financial statements.

D. MEASUREMENT FOCUS/BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when revenues
and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of
accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus
applied.

The government-wide financial statements and fund financial statements for the proprietary funds
are reported using the cconomic resources measurement focus and acerual hasis of accounting.

The economic resources measurcment focus means all assets and liabilities (whether current or
non-current) are included in the balanee sheet and the operating statcments present increases
(revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net position, Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses arc recognized at the time the liability is
incurred.



MENARD COUNTY, ILLINQIS
Notes to Basic Financial Statements — Continued

Governmental funds’ financial statements are reported wsing the current financial resources
measurement focus and are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under
the modified basis of accounting revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual; i.e., when
they become both measurable and available. '"Measurable' means the amount of the transaction
can he determined and "available” means collectihle within the current period or soon enough
thercafter to be used to pay liahilities of the current period. The County considers property taxes
and sales taxes as available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures arc
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred.

The Emergency Medical Services Funid, the Health Department Fund, and certain other
governmeutal funds report using full accrual basis of acconnting.

Revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxces, sales taxes, licenses and fees, charges for
service, interest income and intergovernmental revenues. All other governmental fund type
revenues are generally recognized when reccived.

BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

Budget amounts are determined on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles for the specific fund types.

Appropriation balances lapse at year-end; consequently, the County does not utilize encumbrance
accounting, a system by which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The County Treasurer consolidates the cash for most of the governmental funds into two cash
management pools to maximize intercst income. Excess cash is invested in certificates of deposits
with original maturities of eightecn months or less with local financial institutions. Each fund
whose monies are deposited in the pooled accounts has equity therein. This equity is available on
demand and is “cash equivalents” for financial reporting purposes. The two cash pools are
maintained within the General Fund and in the County Higlhway Fund. Interest earned from the
pnoled accounts is retained by these two funds as an administrative cost recovery. In addition,
because the two cash management pools are sufficiently liquid to permit the withdrawal of cash at
any time without prior notice or penalty, if any, the lunds’ equity in the cash management pools is
also considered to be the equivalent of cash,

The County considers cash and casl equivalents in proprietary funds to be cash on hand, demand
depaosits, and time deposits with original maturitics of 90 days or less.

INVESTMENTS

Invesiments, if any, are reported at cost, which approximates fair value.

RECEIVABLES

Governmental Activities’ Accounis receivable for services provided are reported net of related

allowances for doubtful accounts and contractual adjustments for certain cmergency medical
services. Contractual adjustments occur in those situations where the
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINGIS
Notes to Basic Financial Statements - Continued

payment rate from third party payers is less than the rate charged by the County for the respective
services.

Business-type Activities’ accounts receivabie for services provided are reported net of related
allowances for doubtful accounts and contractual adjustments, if any.

Health relared service revenues arve reported at estimated net realizable amounts from individuals,
third -party payers, and others for services rendered.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are accounted for at invoice cost determined by the first - in first - out method, The
purchase method is used to account for materials and supplies. The costs of materials and supplies
are initially recorded as expenses with the recognition, as inventories, of significant amounts of
unused materials and supplies on hand at year-end.

PREPAID EXPENSES

Prepaid expenses are generally for payments made in the current year for services or bencfits
occurring in a suhsequent year and are reported with other assers.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

QOutstanding balances between funds are eliminated within the governmental activities and the
business-fype activities colamns for presentation of the government-wide financial statements. Any
rcsidual balances ountstanding hetween the governmental activities and the business-type activities
are reported as internal balances.,

The outstanding balances betwecn funds are not eliminated for presentation of the fund financial
statenients where they are included as due fromv/due to other funds.

RESTRICTED ASSETS

Restricted assers primarily include cash and certificates of deposit that have limitations placed on
their use through resolution adopted by the County or through external restriction imposed by
creditors, grantors, or laws, or regulations of other governments. It includes resources such as the
designated earnings of the County’s business-type activities derived from past participation in an
alternate Medicaid reimburseinent methodology with the Siate of Illinois Department of
Healthcare and Family Services.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assers, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are reported
in the applicable povernmental and business-type activities in the goverament-wide financial
statements and in the fund financial statements Tor the propriefary fundy.

All capital assets are valued at historical costs or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost
is not available. Donatcd assets are valued at their fair market value on the date donated. Repairs
and maintenance are recorded as expenses. Renewals and betterments are capitalized.

Generally, assets capitalized have an original cost of $1,000 or more and an estimated useful life of
more than threc years.
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
Notes to Basic Financial Statememty - Continuet!

R.

Property, plant, and equipment and infrastructurc assets are depreciated using the straight-line
meihod over the following estimated useful lives —

- Assels Years
Buildings and improvements 1 1040
Equipmemt 5-20
Vehicles 4-7

Roads | | 30 |
Britges 75

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

In addition to assets, the stalement of netl position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption
of net position that applies (o a future period(s) and so will nof be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expenditure) until then. In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will
sometimes report a separate scction for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
stalement element represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and
so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

ACCRUED ABSENCES

County employees may accumulate earned, but unused vacation pay and other paid time off
benefits. Certain vacation benefits are included in accrued compensation for the governmental
activities. For business-iype activities, acerued compensation includes vacation pay and other paid
time off benefits,

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term debt is reported as liahilitics in the applicable governmental or husiness-type activities
and proprietary funds’ balance sheet.

Debt procéeds, if any, are reported as other financing sources for governmental funds with debt
service funds created and used to account for the servicing of the long-term obligations.

TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN FUNDS

Legally authorized transfers are treated as interfund transfers and are included in the resuits of
operations of both governmental and proprietary funds.

FUND BALANCES FOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Fund balance for governmental funds consist of the following —

Nonspendable Fund Balance — includes amounts that are (a) not in spendabie form, or (b) legally
or contractually required to be maintained intact. The “not in spendable form™ criterion includes

assets that are not expected to be converted into cash anytime soon for example: inventories,
prepaid amounts, and long-term loans and advances receivahle.
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
Notes 1o Basic Financial Statements - Continued

Restricted Fund Balance — includes amounts that are restricted for specific purposes stipulated by
external resources providers, constitutionally or through enabling legislation. Restrictions may
effectively be changed or lifted only with the consent of resource providers.

Committed Fund Balance — includes amounts that can only be used for the specific purposes
determined by a formal action of the County’s highest level of decision making authority, the
Board of County Commissioners, Commitments may he changed or lifted only by the County
taking the same formal action that imposed the constraint originally (for example: resolution and
ordinance).

Assigned Fund Balance — includes amounts intended by the County for specific purposes that are
neither restricted nor commitied. Intent is expressed hy the Board of Commissioners to which the
assigned amounts are to be used for specific purposes. Assigned amounts also inelude all residual
amounts in governmental funds (except negative amounts) other than the General Fund that are
not classified as nonspendable, restricted, or committed.

Unassigned Fund Balance — the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all
amounts not contained in other classifications. Goversmmental funds report residual negative
balances as unassigned fund balance,

In circumstances when an expenditure is made for which amounts are available in multiple fund
balance classifications, fund balance is depleted in the order of restricted, committed, assigned,
and unassigned.

NET POSITION

Net position represents the differeuce between assets, and deferred outflows of resources; and
liahilities, and deferred inflows of resources. Net investment in capital assets consists of capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced hy the outstanding halances of any horrowings
used for the construction, acquisition, or improvements of those asscts. Restricted net position is
legally restricted by ountside parties and or the Board of Commissioners [or & specific purpose.

The County first applies restricted resources when an cxpensc is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted net position is available.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that afTect the reported amounts of asscts and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liahilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual amounts could differ from those estimates,

2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPILIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

The County gencrally follows these procedures in establishing its budget —

1. Tn October of cach year, the County Board of Commissioners develops a proposed operating
budget for the fiscal year commencing the following December 1. The budget includes
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3

proposed expenditures and the means of financing them for virtually all the County’s
individual funds.

2. A copy of the proposed budget is placed on file with the County Clerk for public inspection.
3. Each year the budget is adopted by resolution of the County Board of Commissioners.

After adoption of the budget, further additional appropriations are prohibited for appropriated
funds except in the event of an emergency. Transfers from one appropriation of any one fund to
another appropriation of the same fund, not affecting the total amount appropriated, may be made
at any meeting of the County Board by a vote of the members.

Formal budgetary integration is employed during the year as a management control device.
Appropriation balances lapse at year-end. The following funds had an excess of actnal expenditures
over budgeted expenditures for the year ended November 30, 2018,

Expenditares ]
Actual Budgel Exeess
Noamajor Funds
| Senior Transport Fund 3,384817 |8 32,857 | 8| 5,960 |
_Court Services Fund sl m38 8| 29000 | 8| 3138
D.UL I:qmpmem!und 5 67380 | 8 7000 | 8| 60,380
Fiduciary Funds
Sheriff’s Federal Equitable Sharing Fund | 8| 6,238 8| - 18] 6,238

The D.U.L Equipment Fund excess was caused by the expenditures of grant proceeds that were
unexpected.

A Board approved budget for 2018 {or the Sheriff’s Federal Equitable Slmrmg Fund did not occur
because this fund was previously reported as an “agency” fund.

The Court Services Fund had a deficit fund halance of $19,0141 at Novemher 30, 2018; management
expects to resolve this negative net position during 2019.

The General Fund’s fund balance components at November 30, 2018 consisted of the following.

Noenspendable | Committed | Assigned Unassigned Totals
. - — 4 e
Due from other funds - - 109,026 - 109,626
Accounts receivable 22405 | - - - 27405
Available for spending - - 3r2s! 1347747 | 1,378,998 |
Totals 27408 - 146,277 1,347,747 1,515,429

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

State statutes authorize the types of investments the County may own and the financiat institutions
eligible to receive County deposits. This includes commercial banks, obligations of the United States
Treasury and United States Agencies, obligations of States and their political subdivisions, credit
union sharcs, repurchase agreements subject to certain limitations, commercial paper rated within
the three highest classifications by at least two standard rating services, Metropolitan Investment
Fund, and the Illinois Funds Investment administercd by the Treasurer of the State of Illinois. The
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4,

County has approved the County treasurex’s investinent policy. It is consistent with requirements
of State statutes and strives to minimize the level ot interest rate risk as well as the overall amount
of credit risk. It is the policy and practice of the County treasurer 1o invest idle public funds in
interest bearing accounts with local tinancial institutions and the [llincis Funds. Amounts on deposit
with the local financial institutions more (han insured limils must be entirely collateralized with
appropriate investmeni seeurities and the collaternlization recorded by the respective financial
institution’s safekeeping agents for its investment securities.

At November 30, 2018, all the of the County and its component units’ bank deposits, were
entirely insured and or collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial institutions’
safekecping agents in the name of the County and or ifs component units.

The County had $1,436,323 on depusit with the Hlinois Funds Investment Pool at November 30, 2018,
This deposit is not categorized because it is not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book
entry form. The Illinois Auditor General audits the financial statements for the Mlinois Funds’®
Investment Pool and performs other oversight functions.

ACCOUNTS and TAXES RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable for the County’s governmental funds at November 30, 2018 are as follows -

| Emergency |- L other. o1 T
o | Medicat: | County: | “nommajor | . Total -
General | Services. .| Highway | Governmental | Governmental -
Fand .. Fund. .| Fund-| " Funds > | Activities

Salary

reimbursements,
| State of Hlinois | 113,571 - - ~ 113,571
Granty,

State of Hlinvis - - - 26,334 26,334
| Medicare - 23,554 - - 23,554
Meadicaid - 29,588 - - 29,588
| Insurance - 131,709 - = 131,709
Individuals - 33,125 - - 33,125
 Other 31,531 - - 11,866 43,397
Inrerest 6992 - 1,078 38 8,108
Totals 152,094 217,976 | L4978 38,238 409,386
| Less - o

Allowance  for ) o
doubtful

accounis (77,884) {43,449) - - (121,333)
Allowance  for

contrictial
| adjustinents - | (167,149 - § - {167,149)
Net: . - | 74210 73781 1,078 38,238 120,904
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Medicaid amounts are collected from the State of Llinois and are usually in arrears several months.
For health-related services, provided through the County's governamental activifies, payment rates
establisbed by State and Federal lepisiation and contractual arrangements with other third-party
Payers have been and are primarily prospective, with the intunt of establishing payment rates that
will not change before the pertod for which they will apply.

Accounts receivable for the County’s Business-type activities at November 30, 2018 arc as follows

- Sunny Acres | Countryside |- Total
-V Narsing Home: | -Estates of the | . Business-type:
o oV Fund ) oo County Biind | Activities
Private pay 135,796 526 136,322
Medicare 221,754 - 221,754
| Medicaid _ 72674 - _ 702,674
Insurance 179,944 - 179,944
Interest 4,704 531 F235
Totals 1.244,872 1,057 1,245,929
Lesy -
_Allowance for | ]
Doubiful
Accounts (349,415) - (349,415)
Allowance for
Contractual
adjustmenis - - ]
Nef w0 895,457 A057 | 896,514

For health-related scrviees, provided through the County’s business-lype activities, payment rates
established by State and Federal legislation and contractual arrangements with other third- party
payers have been and are primarily prospective, with the intent of establishing payment rates that
will not change before the period lor which they will apply.

Taxes receivable for the County’s governmenral activities at November 30, 2018 are as follows -

- County

.. | Emergency’\ Motor. |- .- o e
v oo o o | Medieal | Fuel .| Nonmajor - | Total
o Tax - General | Services | - Tax | Governmental | Governmental.
ot Fund | - Fund, | Fund | - Funds . | Activitiés'
Sales 54,973 | 117,878 - 1,050 173,901
Income 36,271 - - - 36,271
Motor fuel - - 18,758 - —_; ___-]8,_?-5T
Totals' . | 91,244 _ 117,878 18,758 | 1,050 . 228,930
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5. CAPITAL ASSIETS

Depreciation expense for the governmental getivities’ functions was as follows -

General government BE 08,654
Public safety 196,717
Roady and bridges 312,159
Public health 656
Judiciary and court 34,237
Public welfare 17,485
| Total depreciation expense | §.! 629,968

Depreciation expense for the business-type activities was as follows,

Smmv Acres Nursing Home s ] 164,922
Countryside Estates of the Coump _ 78,532
Total depreciatinn expense . 8| 243,454

Depreciation expense for the Menard County 911 Systernr was 360,028,

Capital assets activity for governmental activities for the year ended November 30, 2018 was as

follows -
December | Increases Decreases Nevember 30
| Governmental Aetivitiess. _ I AN R
Leand 08,404 | § -1 % 308,404
Construction in propress 178,160 - 178,160
< Total ussers woi being depreciated.”| |- 486,564 Vi 486,564
Capital assets being depreciared
Builidings and improvements 4,512,952 78,582 4,591,534
Equipment 2,162,094 285,781 2,447,875
Vehicles 1,803,793 274,361 2,078,154
Roads 13,189,854 - 13,189,854
Bridges 4,252,582 - 4,252,582
Total assersibeing depreciared .| _|-25,921,375| | - 638,724 36,559,999
Less accrumulated depreciation for |
Buildings and improvemcents (3,220,870) (153,939) (3.374,8019) |
Equipment | (2,040,559) | | (77,735) (2,118,294)
Veficles (1,401,761 {136,039 (1,557,800
Roady  (3,671,085) (187,409) {5,838,494)
Bridges (1,201,409 (54,786) (1,256,195) |
Total accumulated depreum‘mn (13,535,684) | | (629.908) | (14,165,592)
Toral capsml assess’ bemg Lo |
depreciated; net: 12385591 | 8,816 12,394,407
rel activities, capital
Lassets; ret ' 212,872,155 | 8| 08,8167 8 12,880,971
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50

CAPITAL ASSETS - continued

Capital asscts activity for business-type activities for the year ended November 30, 2018 was as follows

Continued

| December 1 Tncreases Decreases November 30
ot 8l o I = § o - 8 =

Capital assets being depreciated _ _

Buildings and improvements 7,107,207 79,150 - 7,186,357
Equipment and vehicles 1,601,881 9,959 - 1,611,840
" Total msets‘wbcmg deprecmted 8,709,088 89,109 - 8,798,197
Lesy accumulated depreciation for . o

Buildings and improvements (5,024,269) {197,157) - {5,221,426)
Equipment (1,464,684} {46,297) - (1,510,981 |
Taral accumularted deprecmmm (6,488,953) {243,454) - (6,732,407)
“ Total capital asseis béing _
Y L5 220:,135° F(154,345) w2 2,068,789
i ASS IS, b 552,220,135 50 (154,345); - | el 2065.789

Capital assets activity for the enterprise funds for the year ended November 30, 2018 was as follows

December 1 Increases Decreases November 31
' Siiry Acres Nirsng Homés .
_Capital assets being depreciated N L
Buildings and improvementy 3 4,700,415 | § 68,562 -5 4,708,977
Equipment and vehicles 1,466,000 9,959 - 1,475,959
Total assets being depreciated L__ 6,166,415 78,521 - 6,244,236
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and improvemenis (3.412,739) (124,532) - (3,537,271}
Equipment (1,354,541) {40,390} - (1,394,931)
Tam! ﬂccumulated deprec mlmn (4,767,280} {164,922) - (4,932,202)
o| Bl ;399,035 | B (BGA0T)-) S [ $E s B IEA TR
December 1 Increases Decreases November 30
- Countryside Estates.of the County: .
Capital assets being deprecicted | | | | |} R
Buildings and improvements § 2,406,792 | § 10,588 -1 % 2,417,380
PRt 135,881 - - 135,881
LT otal assers Being depreciated o :542673 ] |- H10.588 Wl b 4,553,261
Less accumulated deprecigtionfor | | L}
Buildings and improvements (1611 ,334) (72,623) - {1,684,155) |
Eiquipment (110,143) {5,907} - (116,050)
Tm‘mr accumu!uted deprer.mrmn {1,721,673) {78,532) - (1,800,205) |
""" 821,000.| 5| ~(67,944y | 8] T33,056
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Capital asset activity for the County’s discretely presented component unit for the year ended
November M), 2018 was as [ollows -

December | Increases m{)ecmnses November 30 |
“Menard Connty 911 Systanti . - -
Capital assets heing depreciated

Equipment § 236,471 | 8| 63,670 -1 8 300,141
Total assets being depreciated 230,471 63,670 -1 8 300,141

Lexs accumuluted depreciation for o
Equipment (47,294) (60,028} - (167,322)
(47294 | | (60,028 | - (147,322)

A8 077 803,642 | S e 1 T9Z B Ye

6. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Interfund balances at November 30, 2018 consist of the following —

Nie from
o General Special Revenue Fundy I Proprietary Fiduciary
Fund Major Nonmajor Funds Funds Total
General
fund | S - 18| 2148518 75011 | 3 -| 3| 135476 | 3| 231,972
Special
Revernue
| Fundls -
L Major | | - - - - 23,112 23,112
_Nonmajor 45,485 4,810 19,490 - 9,701 79,486
1 Proprietary
Funds 878 20,722 - - 21,601 |
Fiduciary
Fundy - - 10,000 - 995 10,995
Total $| 46,364 | $1 47,017 | § 104,501 | § =i %] 169,284 | 5| 367,166

These amounts result from budgcted interactions between funds that have not yet been
settled at Novembcer 30; most amounts cleared after year end. The amount due from the
Fiduciary Funds to the General Fund includes $109,026 due from the Health Insurance
Clearing Fund for advances provided to assist in financing the initial upfront premium and
periodic eash flow needs: this interfund financing is more long term.
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt activity for the year ended November 30, 2018; not including any related activity
with our pension plans, which are discussed move fully in nole 11, was as lollows

P

— - —_— — _——_—— e —— Dlle
Beginning Ending frext
Balance Additions Reductdons Ralance Jear
Governmental Activities:
Instalimenr contracts b 200000 | § - 10,000 | § 10,000 10,000
STotH GEvarinsHia Acihilies | § Ho0mE § [ dbnses 8 STI0 000
Business-lype Activities:
Revenue Bonds 3

ot Busineieppe dutivines' $ [

Long-term obligations for the governmental activities consist of —

A $10,000 loan due to the Illinois Finance Autharity Ambulance Revolving Loan Program; the terms
of the loan agreement do not require interest and the loan must be repaid in annual installments of

$10,000 through November 2019,

Debt service requirements at November 30, 2018 are as follows —

... Gavermmental Activities ..

Year ending
November 310} Principal Interest Total
2019 10,000 - 10,000
Totd = 18| 100008 . - |81 10,000

Long-term debt for the County’s discretely presented component unif at November 30, 2018 consists
of two installment loans for equipment acquisitions of $60,860 and $48,421. Both loans are sccured

by certain certificales of deposit.

Debt service requirements at Novemher 30, 2018 are as follows —

Discrerely presented component unit

Year ending
Naventber 30 Principal Interest Total
2019 31,781 1785 33,560
2021 32,293 1,273 33,566
2021 32,807 759 33,566
2022 12,400 224 12,624
205
Total S| J09,281| 8| 404158} 113322
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Notes to Basic Financial Statertents - Continued

8.

9.

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT, BUSINESS — TYPE ACTIVITIES

Menard County had previously entered into an intergovernmental agreement with the State of Illinois
to assist the Illinois Department of Healtheare and Family Services in administering an alternate
Medicaid reimbursement methodology for county owned nursing homes. The Menard County Board
of Commissioners designated that the administrative allowances earned because of the County’s
participation in the alternate reimbursement process, and the related interest income, net of any
operating costs, be retained and restricted for future financing needs.  The agreement became
effective for services provided on and after October 1, 2002. The State terminated the agreement on
September 30,2006 and Menard County, as an owner and operator of a county owned nursing home,
was then required to participate in the administration of the alternate Medicaid reimbursement
methodology in accordance with new rules and regulations of the State of Illinois’ Department of
Healthcare and Family Services. While the agreement was in effect, both versions, the related
financial transactions were accounted for in the County’s Intergovernmentaf Tranyfer Fund. After
the agrecment was terminated, the Sunny Acres Nursing Home Fund commenced administering and
accounting for the alternate Medicaid reimbursement process, and the net asseis of the
Intergovernmental Transfer Fund were designated as capital reserve by the County’s Board of

Commissioners, and transferred to, and scgregated within the Sunny Acres Nursing Home Fund in
November 2006.

The agreement for participating in the alternate reimbursement process ended in September 2009,
The Medicaid reimbursement rate for 2010 and 2011remained consistent with the 2009 rate via a
funding plan that was approved by the lederal government in June 2011; that successor arrangement
for the Medicaid reimbursement methodology was and is to consist of a normal daily reimbursemcnt
amount to be earned monthly and a snpplementary amount to be earned quarterly. It was and is the
intent of the County's Board of Commissioners that the supplemental amounts earned will be
reserved and restricted for future capital and Mnancing necds as they are collected.

PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on real property as of January 1 in the year in which the
taxes are levied. The County bills and collects its own property taxes and the taxes of other County
taxing districts. The taxes are generally payable in two installments on June 1 and Scptember 1.
County property taxes are recognized as revenues when levied to the extent that they result in
current veceivahles. The collection and remittance of property taxes to the County and other taxing
districts is accounted for through the County Collector's General Tax Fund, a fiduciary fund.

The unaudited individual fund tax rates and limits during the years ended November 30, 2018 and
2017 are as follows:
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RATES PER $100 OF EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUATION
(2016 EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUE $282,930,856)
(2015 EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUE $277,823,193)

Actual Rate Legal

2017 2016 Limit
General Fund J402 3168 4350
Retirement and FICA Fund 2166 2143 Noue
Liability Insurance Fund d059 1022 None
Ewmergency Medical Services Fund A193 A181 .2560
Tuberculosis Fund 031 0030 L7500
General Assistance Fund 0158 0156 1000
County Fair Fund 0132 0130 200
County Bridge Fund 0500 0499 0500
Federal Aid Matching Fand 0500 0499 0560
County Higlnwvay Fupd 030 1028 1030
Road Repair and Maintenance Fund 0500 0499 0500
Caoperative Extension Service Fund 0102 G0 0500

Total rute {0773 L6535

10. INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budger requires collect them,
to the fund that statute or budget requires expending them, {(2) move receipts restricted to deht
service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service Tund as debt service paymenis
become due, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the gencral fund to finance varions
programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary anthorizations. Interfund
transfers for the year ended November 30, 2017 consisted of the following -

L ransgers fron
Greneral Special Reverie Praprietary
Fund Funds Funds Total
Major Nottmajor

General
Fund 3 -1 8 -1 % 102945 | § G000 | § | 162,945
Special
Revenue

Major 34,054 - - - 34,054

Nenmeajor 175,000 00,908 5,000 e 246,%08
Proprierary
Frunids . N - 311,149 Ji1 149
Tortal $, 200054 | 8| 06,908 | § 107,945 | § 375,149 ] § | 755,050

The “transfers from” and “transfers to” within the proprietary funds include the collection
of Medicaid supplementary funds, $310,724, hy the operations component of the Sunny Acres

Nursing Home Fund and subsequent transfer to that fund’s capital reserve component during
2018.
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11.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

The County maintains three defined bencfit pension plans administered by/through the llinois
Municipal Retirement Fund (TMIRF), the administrator of 4 muolti-employer public pension fund.
These defined benefit pension plans provide retirement and disability benefits, post-retirement
increases, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The plans are managed hy the
Hiinois Municipal Retirement Fnnd (IMRF). A summary of IMRF’s pension benefits is
provided in the “Benefits provided™ section of this note. Details of all benefits are available from
IMRF. Benefit provisions arc established by statute and may only be changed by the General
Assembly of the State of Illinois. IMRF issues a publicly available Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report that includes, financial statements, detailed information about the pension plan’s
liduciary net position, and reqnired supplementary information. The report is available for

download at www.imirf org,

The majority of the County’s employees participate in the Regular Plan (RP). The Sherill’s Law
Enforcement Personnel (SLEP) plan is for the sheriff, and deputies. Counties could adopt the
Elected County Official (ECO) plan for officials elceted prior to August 8, 2011 (the ECO plan was
closed to new participants after that date). Al three IMRF bencfit plans have ¢two tiers. Employces
hired hefore January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 1 benefits. Tier 1 employees are vested for
pension benefits when they have at least eight years of qualifying service credit. Tier 1 employees
who retire at age 55 (at reduced bencfits) or after age 60 (at full benefits) with cight years of
service are enfitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount
equal to 1-2/3% of the final rate of earnings for the first 15 years of service eredit, plus 2% for
each year of service credit after 15 years to 2 maximum of 75% of their final rate of carnings.
Final rate of earnings is the highest total earnings during any consecutive 48 months within the
last 10 years of service, divided by 48, Under Ticr I, the pengion is increased by 3% of the
original amount on January 1 every year after retirement.

Employecs hired on or after January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For Tier 2
employees, pension benefits vest after ten years of service. Participating employees who retire at
age 62 (at reduced benefits) or after age 67 (at full benefits) with ten years of scrvice are
entitled to an annuval retiremcnt benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1-
2/3% of the final rate of earnings for the first 15 years of service credit, plus 2% for each year of
service credit after 15 years to a maximum of 75% of their final rate of earnings, Final rate of
carnings is the highest total earnings during any 96 consccutive months within the last 10 years of
service, divided by 96, Under Tier 2, the pension is increased on January I every year after
retirement, upon reaching age 67, by the lesser of: 3% of the original pension amount, or 1/2 of
the increase in the Consumer Price Index of the original pension amount.

Fmplovees Covered by Beneflit Terms —

As of December 31, 2017, the following plan members/participants were covered by the benefit
lerms:

RP SLEP | __ECO _

Retirees and beneficiaries - 116 9 &
Tnactive, non-retired members C 366 70
Active members 133 9 ‘ 2
Total | | - 615 . 25 I8
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Contributions

As set by statute, RP members are required to contribute 4.5% of their annual covered salary;
SLEP and ECO members contribute 7.5%. The County is required to contribute the amount
necessary, in addition to member contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own
employees. The County’s annual contribution rates for calendar year 2018 were 7.44% RP;
18.76% SLEP; 61.36% ECO. Annual contribution rates for calendar year 2017 were 7.54% RP;
20.93% SLEP; 63.23% ECQ. For 2018, the County contributed $360,822 to the RP; $112,042 to
SLEP; and 388,684 to ECO. The County also contributes for disability benefits, death benefits,
and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution
rates for disability and death benefits are set by IMRF’s Board of Trustees, while the supplemental
retirement benefits rate is set by statute. There were no benefit changes during the year.

Net Pension Liability

The net pension liability for all three plans was measured as of December 31, 2017. The total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension hability was determined hy an actuarial valuation
as of that date,

Acinarial Assumptions

The following are the methods and assumptions used to determine total pension liability at
December 31, 2017:

* The Actuarial Cost Mcthod used was Entry Age Normal,

¢ The Asset Valuation Method used was Market Value of Assets. The Inflation Rate was
assumed to be 2.73% approximate. S-year smoothed market; 20% corridor

e  Salary Increases were expected to be 3.75% to 14.50%, including inflation. Wage growth
3.50%

¢ The Investment Rate of Return was assumed to be 7.50%.

e Projected Retirement Age was from the Experience-based Table of Rates, specific
to the type of eligibility condition, lnst npdated for the 2014 valuation according to an
experience study from years 2{11 to 2013,

=  The IMRF-specific rates for Mortality (for non-disabled retirees) were developed from
the RP-2014 Blue Collar Health Annuitant Mortality Table with adjustments to match
current IMRF experience.

¢  For Disabled Retirees, an IMRF-specific mortality table was used with fully generational
projection scale MIP*-2014 (base year 2012).

. For Active Members, an IMRF-specific mortality table was used with fully
generational projection scale MP-2014 (base year 2012). The IMRF-specific rates were

developed from the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table with adjustments to match current
IMRF experience.
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s The loug-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using

# building-block method in which best-cstimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return {expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are
devcloped for each major asset class. These raages are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future reai rates of return to the target
asset allocation perecentage and adding expected inflation, The target allocation and best
estimates of geometric real rates of return for cach major asset class are summarized in the
following table:

_  Long-Term -
Porifolio.  Expected .

Target  Real Rate
: - Percentage ~ of Return
Domestic Equity _ o 37% 685%
International Equity L 18% L 6.25%
Fixed Income . 28% . 300%
Real Estate o e sy
Alternative Investments . 7% . 2.65-7.35%
Cash Equivalents : 1% L 2.25%
%Tuml _ - : 100%

Single Discount Rate

A Single Discount Rate of 7.50% was used to measure the total pension liability. The projection
of cash flow used to determine this Siugle Discount Rate assomed that the plan members’
contributions will be made at the current contribution rute, and that employer contributions
will be made at rates cqual to the difference between actnarially determined contribution rates
and the member rate. The Single Discount Rate reflects:

1.

The long-term expected rate of retnrn on pension plan investmenis (during the period in
which the fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficicnt to pay benefits), and

The tax-excmpt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation bonds
with ap average AA credit rating (which is published by the Federal Rescrve) as of the
measnrement date (to the extent that the contributions for use with the long-term cexpected
rate of return are not met).

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan invesiments {(during the period in
which the fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay bencfits), and

The tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general ohligation bonds
with an average AA credit rating (which is published by the Federal Reserve) as of the
measurement date (to the extent that the contributions for use with the long-term expected
rate of return are not met).

For the most recent valuation, the expected rate of return on plan investments is 7.50%,
the municipal bond rate is 3.78%, and the resulting single discount rate is 7.50%.
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 Change in the Net Pension Liabifity{asset) — Regular Plant (RP)

~ Tetal i . NetPension
. S _ ... Pension _ -Plan Fiduciary:  Liability
... .. Liability ; NetPosiion . . (Asset)
‘Balunces at December 31,2016 200726, 349'7-3."' 220,202,801 - 623,696,
‘Changes for the vear: : : , :
Service Cost i i3e, 042 . - 536,042
Interest on (I:e Tota! Pemmn Lmbrhru Cn o 4L540, 025 o= L 4540025
iWChanges of Benefit Terms. . S P ORI
Differenices between Expec.ted(mdAcmal,, A o
' Experience of the Total Pension Liabifity | (421138y .. - (421,135}
\Changes of Asywmptions . {(605914F - - (605.914)
WContribytions - Employer. < 360822 (360,822),
;C(mtnbrmmn - Emplovees ‘ o = 230524 {230, ‘724
‘Net Investment Income s 3Ss2L540 (3821, 541);
Benef'l Payvments, including Reﬁmd& S S ' :
Lof Emplovee Contributions . . . (921697 . (921,697} i
iOther (Net Transfer) S S S {336, 610) 336 6]0
iNet Changes P 27321 -_,‘2 854,580, . 12,727, 259);

Balances* al Deéémber 31 201 ? -

22957381 . (2103,563),

The regular plan includes both governmental activities® and basiness-type activities’ employees. The
net pension liability (asset) above as well as the pension expense and the related deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources amounts have been allocated between these two activities
for financial reporting purposes based on the respective proportionate share of participating
employecs’ salaries and wapes for the year ended November 30, 20H8; approximately 51% for
governmermtal activities and 49% for business- type activities.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Chanpes in the Discount Rate for the Repular plan (RP)

The following presents the Regular Plan’s (RP) net pension liability (assct), calculated nsing
a Single Discount Rate of 7.50% as well as what the plan’s net pension liability would be if
it were calculated using a Single Discount Rate that is 1% lower or 1% higher:

T% Lr)l'i.’e'r i Current Rate % I'fighe:." |
; . 6.50% — 7.50% . 8.50%
Ncr Peusion Liakility(Asser) - 440,996 . (2.1 03 563) - (4 I 51 6?&)

Pension Expense, Deferred Qutflows of Resvurces, aud Deferred Inflows of Resources Related 1o

Pensions for the Regular Plar (RP)

For the regular plan, reported deferred outflows of resources and deferved inflows of resources
rclated to pensions from the following sources were:
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: S o o - - Deferred | Deferred - Net Deferred
| . Deferred Amounts Related to Pensions ~ Outflows of  Inflows of . Inflows of
L .. . ... .. . ... Resources . Resources . Resources
i. .. Deferred Amounis fo be Recoonized in Pension. : 5

i ... Expense in Future Periods | o I

.leferem,es between expected and acinal expeneme o - R
Cimnge; of assumptions L meo 303363 303,363
Nel difference between pra]ecmd amI rrct:ml o o o 384,963 384,963
learmng\ on pension plan [ivestments ' 654,739. 1,631,074 976,335,

i

{Total Deferred Amounts to be recognized in

| pension expense in future periods 6347392319400 1664661
iPmmrm Cfmmbmmm mnrle \ubfequenr '. . i AU L

fo the Measurement Dnre _ R 360,000 - 360,000
(Total Deferred Amounts Related to FPensions 1 1,014,739 2,319400: 1,304,661

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources for
the repgular plan related to pensions are expected to be recognized in pension expense in
future periods as follows:

Year Ending | Net Deferred Governmental Business-type
November 30, Inflows Activities Activities
2019 116,027 59174 | | __ 56,853
2020 395,074 201,488 | 193, 586
2021 385,700 196,753 189037
2022 407,770 | .. 20%%63 | | __ 199,807 | .
2023 - - -
dafter - - -
Total 1,304,661 665,378 639,283
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Changes in the Net Pension Liability — Sheriff's Law Enforcement Plan (SLEP)
Total

Pension Plan Net Penision

Liability Net Position Liahility

|_Balances at December 31, 2016 G 4, 712318 | 4,097,041 | 615,177
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 92,163 92,163
Interest on the Total Pension Lighility J48,497 348,497

Changes of Benefit Terms - -1 -
Differences between Expected and Actual

_Experience of the Total Pension Liability 97,442 97,442
Chanpes of Assumptions (55,791) (55,791)
Contributions - Employer 112,042 (112,042)
Coneribitions - Emplovees 40,332 (40,332}
Net Investment Income 7i4.471 (714471)
Benefit Payments, including Refunds
aof Employee Contributions (223,538} (223.538) -
Other (Net Transfer) - (77,825) 77,825
Net Changes D 238,773\ o 965,482 |- (306,709)
Balances nt December 31, 2017 9L 4 6636230 308,468

Sensitivity of tire Net Pension Liabitity to Chanpes in the Discount Rate for the Sheriff’s Law Enforcement Plan

(SLEP)

The following presents the Sheriff’s Law Enforcement Plan (SLEP) net pension liability,
calculated using a Single Discount Rate of 7,50% as weill as what the plan’s net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a Single Discount Rate that is 1% lower or 1%

higher:

1% Lower | Cyrmhr Rate i % Hu_riur
L L 650% | 750% - 8.50% _
Net Pension Liabilitv 961,471 . 308468  :  (225.463).

Reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (rom the
following sources were-

(%]
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINCHS
Notes to Basic Financial Statemenis — Continued

o o | " Deferred ~ Deferred - Net Deferred
. Deferred Amounty Related to Pensions. " Outflows of . Inflows of | Inflows of |
o o . .. Resources . Resources . Resources
Deterred Amounts to be Recarnized in Pension. ' :
' . Fxpense in Futnre Periods L
D:ﬂerencec behveen expected and actual empvrmuce_ ! 116,287 68,_524_§ 47,763

Chomges of assamptions e saisdisest

Net difference between prajected and actwal 1
(earnings on pension plan imestments i R _J;’6,_3695‘ _J30.218 203,849 -

Total Deferred Amounts to be recognized in.~—~— ©
Epgn;fqr{_grpm_sg in future perinds i 252,833f 448,876 196,043 ?

Pension. Contributions made subsequent o R R e _ .
' to the Measurement Date 112,000 - 112,000

Total Deferred Amounts Reluted to Pensions | | 364835 | 448476, 4043 |

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred imflows of resources for
the sheriff’s law enforcement plan related to pensions will be recognized in pension
cxpense in futuce periods as follows:

. Yearending  Net Deferred Inflows
i Nmrembr:r 30. of Resources

I 2019 (113,865
L2020 39,087
20 ¢ 81647
2022 0 7?7174
2023 -
o After ; R
Total . 84043

Ja



MENARD COUNTY, [LLINOIS
Notes 1o Basic Financial Statementy — Continned

Changes in the Net Pension Liuhility — Elected Connty Officials Plan (ECQO)

. Total o S
 Pension  Plan . Net Pension
o Liabiliry Net Position . Liability
: (Awetj
Balances at December 31, 2016 o0 4.850,375 . S 4228.33F - - . 622:044
‘Changes for the vear: L
Service Cost _ 31,205, N - _..31.205%
idnterest on the Toral Pension Liahility S 352782 - 352,782
Ch(mges ()!'Beneft Terms . . R .
D:fference& hetween Fxpeued and Acttml ‘ : o ‘
| Experience of the Total Pension Liability CA4SMY - (4514
Changes of Assumptions L (2L642 2 (21,641
‘Contributions - Emplover = BBoB4:  (RB.6B4)
Contributiony - Emplovees ) _ : Y /5 F L (10519}
Net Investmem Income o _ . 814,256 (8!4 256);
Beneﬂ‘ Payvments, mdmlmu Rcﬁmrls L S e L
iof Employee Contributions | (324446) | (324,446} -
‘Other (Net Tmmfer) f - (101,04%): 101, 049
Net Chtmgc? 23.385 487,964 4&4’.5 79)'1
I(mLes at Dm:ember 3! 2!‘)17 ‘ 487 g 716,295 15 ? 465

Seasitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Clianges in the Discount Raie for the Elgcted County Qfficials Plan

(ECQ)

The following presents the Flected County Officials Plan (EC(O) net pension liabiliry,
c2lculated using a Single Discount Rate of 7.54% as well as what the plan’s net pension
liability would be if it were caleulated using a Single Discount Rate that is 1% lower or 1%

higher:
1% L'o'wéf  Current Rate 1% Higher
Net Pension Liability 691 452 : ]57 465 . 292,736

Pension Expense, Deferred Quifiows of Resourees, and Deferred [nflows of Resources Related to
FPensions for the Elected County Qfficials Plan (ECO)

Reported deferred outllows of resources and deferred infllows of resources related to pensions from
the following sources were:
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
Notes to Basic Financial Statements — Continued

' Deferred Amounts Related to Pensions

... Deferred Amounits fo be Recoenized in Pension
] ~ Expense in Fulure Periods

j

leferem.ﬂ berween expected and actual experience

;Clmr!:..'ﬁ-s. of assumptions

Vet difference between projected and nctual
iearniugs an pension pan imestments

Totl Deferred Amounts to be recognized in
| pension expense in future peviods

B
.Pensmn C‘anmbmmm nmde mbvequmr! o
. o the Measurement Date
t
§T otal Deferred Amoumts Related to Pensions

Deferred

: Outﬂows‘ of |
. Resources

! Deferred

o Inflows of |

i Resources, :

Net Deferred
Inflows of |
Resources |

- 5966 5966

- 8896 8896
L9702 407494 267791
139.702 422336 282654 |
227702 42,3561 194,654

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources for
the clected county officials plan related fo pensions will be reeognized in pension

expense in future periods as follows:

Year ending

“ _:j_Net .Defcfrcd f " ﬂbmg - _

; ) Navembr:r 30

uchmuer
o o 20}9 S o (45,!70)
: 2020 L 40170
2021 o - 97,779
2022 201,875
2023 -

 Tetal

The pension liability and related deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

for all three pension
follows -
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
Notes to Basic Financial Statements — Continued

! Gavernmenial Business-type
Activities Activities Total

Net pension Hability
Regular plan(RF) (1,072,817) (1,030,746) (2,103,563}
Sheriffs’ Law Enforcement Personnel PIﬂn(SLEP) 308,468 - 308,468
Elected County Officials Plan(ECO) 157,465 - 157,465

Totl nef pension liability {606;884) {La36746) ELE37630

Deferred ountflows of resources _ -
Regwlar plan(RP) 517,517 497,222 1,014,739 ]
Sheriff's Law Enfarcement Personnel Plan(SLEP) J64.833 - J64,833
Elected County Offi r,ml.s Plnn(EC‘ 0) 227,702 -

Total deferced iions of TE00sE] [ A9

| Deferred m_ﬂmm of resources

Regular plan(RP) 1,182,894 1,436,306 2,319,400 |
Sheriff’s Law Enforcement Personnel Plun(SLEP) 448,876 448,876
Elected County O_ﬁh fals Plan(ECO) 422,356 - 422,356

T oral dererred inflows pf tesautcds R 0sNI26 ] 00633

12, DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS

13.

14.

The County sponsors deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457. The plans are available to all County employees at their option and permit participants to
defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation and accemulated carnings
are not available to participants until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency., The
plans® assets have been placed in trust for the exclusive benefit of plan participants and are not included
in the County’s financial statements. The County has no fiduciary responsibility for the plans® asscts,

INTEREST EXPENSE

There were no interest eosts incurred by the governstental uctivities. The business-type activities did not
incur any interest costs.

ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

Local Hlinois governments and other organizations are currently confronted with what can become or
scems like unprecedented circumstances and challenges as consequences of decreascs in tax revennes, grant
revenues, and reimbursements for the actual cosis of provided services. Constraints on liquidity and
difficulty obtaining financing can also result,

Emergency Medical Services’ operations are funded with both Medicare and Medicaid revenues.
Many Sunny Acres’” Nursing Home’s residents receive Medicaid insurance benefits through the State of

Illinois Department of Healthcare and Family Services. In these instances, a substantial portion of the
nursing home’s fee for resident care services is received dircctly from the State of Illinois. Amounts
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
Nortes to Basic Financial Statemenrts — Continued

15.

17.

18.

due from the State of Illingis for Medicaid reimbursements generally are in arrears three to five months.
Sunny Acres began providing Medicare services to eligible residents in late 2004. Approximately cighty
percent of the nursing home’s revenuc is derived through and from Medicare and Medieaid.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Menard County participates in the Hlinois Counties Risk Management Trust (o finance and manage its
potential risk of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions;
injuries to employees; and natural disaster. This is an arrangement by which certain Ilinois countics pool
risks and funds and participate and share in the costs of reinsurance arrangements. There was no significant
reduction in risk coverage from 2014,

The County is self-insured for State of Illincis unemployment compensation purposes. Such costs, if any,
arc funded after nolification from the State of Illinois,

Also, it is possible that, from time to time, the County’s participation in certain aspects of the “Patient
Protection and Affordable Care Act” could result in the future assessment of “Employer Shared
Responsibility” amounts. Management belicves that such assessments, if any, will not significantly impact
the County’s financial position.

CONTINGENCIES

The County participates in several Federal and Siate award programs and derives revenues from Medicare
and Medicaid. These programs are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their
represenialives. Manapgement believes that any liability for reimbursement, if any, which may arise, as the
result of these audits will not significantly impact the County’s financial position.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events were evaluated through May 29, 2019; the date the financial statements were available
for issnance. Fvents or transactions occurring after November 30, 2018 and through May 29, 2019, if any,
that provided addifional evidence about conditions that existed at November 30, 2018 have been recognized
in the basic finaneial statements.
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
GENERAL FUND

RUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDDVLLE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 20138

Varianees -
Positive (Negative)
018 Rudpet
Rudpeted Amounts Actual Original to Budget Final to
(riginal Final Amounis Final Actuzl
REYENUES
Property taxes £ 967,300 % 967,300 £ 964,607 $ - 3 {2,693)
Federal and State pryments L461,660 1,461,660 1,508,971 - 4T .1
Fines, fees, forfeitures and licenses 360,000 360,000 IR0 - 20,909
Charges for services ) 128,000 128,004 128,467 - 467
Other 30,600 30,600 In,R73 - 6,273
Interest 13,501 13,500 21 K31 - 10,331
Total revenues 2,961,060 2,961,060 3,043,658 - 81,598
EXPENDITURES
General government 1,247,662 1,247,662 1,128,045 - 119,617
Public safety 1,409,487 1,409,487 1,264,388 - 145,099
Judiciary and court 075,552 675,552 595,889 - 79,413
County develepment 6,250 6,250 6,250 - -
Total expenditures 3,338,951 3,338,951 2,994,572 - 244,129
EXCESS REVENUES OVLER (LINDER)
EXPFENDITURES (377,891) (377,891) 49,086 - 426,727
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in (out):
From Sunny Acres Nursing Home Fund 60,000 60,000 60,000 - -
From County Clerk Docoment Storage Fund 10,0100 10,00} 10,000 - -
From County Farm Fund 46,000 46,000 46,000 - B
From G18 Fund 30,000 30,000 33,000 - -
From Probation Scrvices Fuad 16,245 16,945 16,45 - -
‘I'o Health Department Fund (39,R00} (39,800) (34,054) . 5,746
To Animal Control Fund (40,0003 (40,000) {40,004) - -
To County Elections Fund (60,0003 (60,000) {60,004) - -
Ta Ruikling Improvement Fun:l (75,000} (75,000) {75,000) - -
Total other financing sources (uses) (51,855) (51,855) {40,109} - 5,746
NET CHANGE TN FUNI BALANCE (429,746} {419,746) 2977 - 432,473
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING : 1,394,200 1,394,200 1,512,452 - 118,252
FUND BALANCE - ENDING & 964,454 § 904,454 3 1,515429 b - b 550,725
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS

GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOYEMEER 230, 2018

REVENLUES

Real estate taxes

Mobile home privilege taxes

Shelter rent in lieu of tnxes

Federal and State payments:
Personal property replacement tax
Sales tax
Connty supplemental sales tax
State income tax
Salary reimbursements
Federal awards
State nwards

Fines, fees, forfeitures and licenses:
Circnit Clerk fees and fines
County Clerk lees
Treasurer and Collector fees
County Sheriff fees
State’s Attorney fees
Zoning fees
Other

Charypes for services:
Housing federal prisoners and others
Salary reimbursements

Qther

Interest

TOTAL REVENUES

Yariances -
Positive (Negative)
2018 Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Original to Budget Final to
Original Final Amounts Final Actual

8 962,400 3 962,400 5 959,297 h] - 5 {3,103)
400 400 307 - 3)

4,500 4,500 4,913 - 413
75,000 75,000 46,542 - (28,458)
316,500 316,500 370,794 - 54,294
149,000 149,000 151,659 - 1,059
650,000 650,000 657,951 - 7,951
251,160 251,160 262,057 - 10,897
20,000 20,000 - - (20,000)

- - 19,968 - 19,968
140,000 140,000 126,751 - (13,249)
148,000 148,000 150,353 - 13353
32,000 32,000 33,087 - 1,087
20,000 20,000 22,663 - 2,663
2,000 2,000 2,604 - 604
16,000 16,000 9,424 - {6,576)
2,000 2,000 36,027 - 34,027

- - 467 - 467

128,000 128,000 128,000 - -
30,600 30,600 36,873 - 6,273
13,500 13,500 23,831 - 10,331

$ 2,961,060 3 2,961,060 $ 3,043,658 b - b §2,598
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDNWLE
FOR TIHE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 3¢, 2018

Variances -
Pusitive (Mepative)
2018 Budpet
Budgeted Amounts Actual Original to Budget Final to
Original Final Amounts Final Actual
EXPENDITURES
General povernment;
Building and grounds - Courthouse:
Salnries of custodians £ 48,488 § 48488 § 47,245 5 - 5 1,243
Operating fuel 300 300 102 - 198
Electrical, plumbing, etc 800 800 658 - 142
Building repaira and maintenance 20,000 20,000 20,056 - {56)
Landscaping 2,000 2,000 2,044 - {4d)
Electricity and patural gas 25,000 25,000 23,769 - 1,231
Water and sewer 1,300 1,300 1419 - (119)
Garbuage disposal 1,000 1,000 637 - 363
Samitation, cleaning, disinfecting 8,000 8,000 7417 - 583
Total building and grounds - Courthouse 106,888 106,888 103,347 - 3,541
Office of County Clerk and Recorder:

Salary of County Clerk and Recorder 61,617 61,617 61,617 - -
Salaries and wages 92,751 92,752 92,000 - 752
Stationery and office supplies 4,750 4,750 3,149 - 1601
Office equipment RI([(] N0 1.977 - {2,677}
Copy machine supplies 1,800 1,800 725 - 1,075
Buooks, periodicals, manuals 100 100 - - 100
Postape 4,200 4,200 2,638 - 1,562
Auto mileage and travel expense 1,400 1,400 815 - 575
Legal notices or publishing 100 100 198 - (98)
Printing, duplication, binding 100 100 - - 100
Telephone - - - - -
Maintenance of office equipment 4,200 4,200 537 - 3,663
Dues and memberships 400 400 pll] - 130
Instruction and schooling 250 250 210 - 40

Computer related 1,200 1,200 399 - 501
Total County Clerk and Recorder 173,169 173,169 165,545 - 7,624
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MENARD COUNTY, HL.LINOIS
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 340, 2018

Variances -
Positive (Negative)
2018 Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Original to Budgci Final to
Original Final Amounts Final Actual
EXPENDITURES
General government (continued)
Office of County Treasurer and Collector
Sulary of County Treasurer and Colleetor 61,617 61,617 61,617 - -
Salaries and wages 55,826 55,426 47,157 - 8,669
Stationery and office supplics 1,200 1,200 421 - A1
Office cquipment ] 250 250 Ang - {2,969)
Books, periodicals, manualy - - - - -
Computer related - - - - -
Auio miteage 250 250 207 - 43
Postage 2,100 2,100 764 - 1,336
Travel expense 250 250 7 - 243
Lepal notices or publishing 700 700 669 - M
Printing, duplicating, binding 4,400 4,401 4,142 - 258
Telephone - - - - -
Maintcnance of office equipment 5,050 5,050 1,313 - 3137
Dues und memberships 150 150 150 - -
Instruction and schooling A50 350 0 - 260
Total County Treasarer and Collector 132,143 132,143 120,156 - 11,987
OlTice of Supervisor of Asscssments:
Salary of Supervisor of Assessments 66,575 60,575 66,575 - -
{50% reimbursed by the State of [llinois) - -
Salaries and wages 70,314 7314 69,688 - 626
Per diem 400 400 00 - 100
Stationery and office supplics 1,000 1,000 286 ' - 714
Office equipment 1,000 1,000 - - 1,000
Books, periodicals, manuals 200 200 - - 200
Computer related 1,000 1,000 - - 1,000
Protessional fees - appraisals 500 500 - - 500
Auto mileage 800 800 678 - (78)
Postage 3,000 1000 k]| - 2,970
Telephone - - - - -
Travel expense 500 500 887 - (87)
[.cgal notices or publishing 2,500 2,500 4,984 - {2,484}
Printing, duplicating, binding 800 g0n 651 - 147
Dues and memberships 250 250 275 - (25)
[nstruction and schooling 1,000 1,000 855 - 145
Mapping mainienance 1,000 1,000 - - 1,000
Total Sepervisor of Assessments 150,839 150,839 145,111 - 5,728
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMIER 340, 2018

2018

{'ositive (Nepative)

Budgeted Amounis Actual Budget Final to
Original Final Amounts Actual
EXPENIMTURES
General government (continued)
County Coordinator, Zoninp, and G15:
Salaries and wages B8.560 F8,560 91,017 (2.47T)
Per diewm 4,000 4,000 1,900 2,100
Stationery and office supplies 00 M0 pax) 67
Office equipment 00 200 - 200
Postage 600 H00 330 270
Books, periodicals, manuals 100 100 - 100
Compnicr relatcd - - - -
Aute mileage A0 K00 176 324
Travel expense 400 400 - 400
Lepal notices or publishing 1,400 1,400 414} 999
Printing, duplicating, binding - - - -
Telephone - - - -
Nues and memberships 100 100 - 100
Instroction and schooling 05 650 500 150
Office equipment grenter than $500 . - - - -
Total County (Coardinator, Zoninp, and GIS 57,010 97,110 04,686 2,424
Other; .
Salaries and wages - - - -
Compensation of Covnty Commissioners 40000 40,000 40,000 -
Per dien L] HG0 L[} -
Stationary and ofMice supplies - - - -
Rooks, perivdicals, manuals - - - -
Infermation technology 54,000 54,000 63,079 (9,079
County's share of expenses of Regional -

Superintendent of Schoots' Ollice 19,863 19,863 29,736 127
Inyoest and autopsy fees 12,400 12,000 24,414 (12,414)
State of Hllinois revenue stamps T0,001) 70,000 45,023 21977
Auditing and accounting services 45,150 45,150 43,350 1,800
Consulling and legal services 14,900 14,900 21,83 (6,931}
Auto mileage 2,000 2,000 585 1,415
Office equipment 6,500 6,500 3012 3,488
Travel expenses - - - -
Lepal natices ar puhlishing 800 ROG 216 sha
Printing, duplicating, and binding - B - -
Conrt reporting 506G 500 - =00
Health Insurance 260,000 260,000 212,985 47.015
Telephone 2,300 8300 7912 M8
Dues and memberships [,600 1,600 912 (.1
Contingeneics 40,000 40,000 THR 30202
Other ' £,100 1,100 1,557 @57
Office cquipment over 5500 . - - -

Total other expenditures 547,513 587513 499,200 83,313

Totat general governmeat 1,247.662 1,247,662 1,128,045 119617
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2018

Variances -
Positive (Nepative)
2018 Budpet
Budgcted Amounts Actual Original to Budget Final to
Original Final Amounts Final Actual
EXPENDITURES
Pubtlic safety:
Office of County SheriT - Law Enforcement:
Salary of Sheriff 74,067 74,067 74,399 - {332)
Other salaries and wages 1,031,070 1,031,070 948,278 “ B2, 792
CIEG task force 20,000 20,000 18,333 - 1,667
Stationery and supplies 2,200 2,200 2,796 - {596}
Copy machine supplies 500 500 618 - {118)
Books, periodicals, manuals 500 300 342 - 158
Office equipment 1,000 1,000 927 - 73
Computer related 6,300 6,300 4,973 - 1,327
Inmate supplies 1,000 1,000 524 - 476
Medical, dental, and nursing fecs 43,000 43,0600 27,485 - 15515
Prisoner food and meals 26,000 26,000 19,815 - 6,185
Gasolineg, equipment, and supplies 35,000 35,000 30,048 - 4952
Clothing, uniforms 10,000 10,000 9,960 - A4
Operational supplies 3,000 3,000 2.568 - 432
Towing and hauling 500 500 176 - 324
Postape 2,500 2,500 2,500 - -
Legal notices or publishing 350 350 147 - ' 203
Electricity and gas 18,000 18,000 13,713 - 4,287
‘Telephone 16,000 16,000 11,250 - 4,750
Water and sewer 5.000 5,000 2,294 - 2,706
Garbage disposal 1,000 1,000 820 - 180
Automohile mainfenance 18,000 18,000 15,202 - 2,798
Muobile equipment maintenance 4,000 4,000 4,873 - (B73)
Office equipment maintenance 4,000 4,000 2,881 - 119
L.andscaping maintenance - - - - -
. Office equipment lenses 6,300 6,300 10,294 - (3,994)
Dues and memberships 2,700 2,700 2,570 - 130
Janitorial 2,000 9,000 3,545 - 5455
Housing prisoners in other counties 10,000 10,000 6,792 - 3,208
Travel expense 2,000 2,000 2,583 - (583)
Convention 1,000 1,000 775 - 215
[nstruction and schooling 7,000 7,000 2,058 - 4,942

County Sheriff (carried forward) 1,360,987 1,360,987 1,223,545 - 137,442
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MENARD COUNTY, TLLINOIS
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDLED NOVEMBER 30, 2018

Variances -
Positive (Negative)
2018 Budget
Budpeted Amounts Actual Original te Budget Final to
Original Final Amounts Final Actual

EXFENDITURES
Publi¢ safety (continued)
Office of County Sheriff - Law Enforcement:
County Sheriff (brought forward) 1,360,987 1,360,987 1,223,545 - 137,442
Investipation costs - - - - -
Photographic equipment - - -
Automotive equipment 28,000 28,000 27,672 - 328

Radio equipment - - - - -
Jail repair and maintenance 20,000 20,000 12,812 - 7,188
Other 500 500 359 - 141

Taotal Public Salety 1,409,487 1,409,487 1,264,388 - 145,099

Judiciary and court related:
Office ol State's Attorncy:
Salary of State's Atterney { 88% reimbursed

by the State of 1llinois) 137,138 137,138 129,432 - 7,706
Other salaries and wapes 69,555 69,555 62,027 - 7,528
Stationery and office supplics 3,350 3,350 2,494 - 856
Office equipment 550 550 M - 279
Copy machine supplies 1,441 1,441 1,859 - (418)
Bovks, periodicals, manuals 4,300 4,300 4,760 - (460)
Computer related - - - - _
Court reporting 1,900 1,900 84 - 1816
Witness lees 1,000 1,000 - - 1,000
Postape 1,050 1,050 1,000 - 50
Travel 1,000 1,000 1,025 - (25)
Legal notices or publishing M35 M5 79 - 236
Telephone - - - - -
Office equipment maintenance 200 200 - - 200
Dues and memberships 1,100 1,100 840 - 260
Instruction and schooling 850 850 350 - 500
[nvestigation expense 1,000 1,000 589 - 411
Miscellaneouns lces 100 100 - - 100
State's Attorney appellate service 6,500 6,500 5,000 - 1,500

Total State's Attorney 231,349 231,349 209810 - 11,519
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MENARD COUNTY, [LLINOIS
GENERAL FUND

BIMDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2018

varinnces -
Positive (Negative)
20148 Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actuoal Original to Budget Final to
Original Finnl Amaonnts Final Actual
EXFENIMTURES
Judiciary and court related (continued)
Office of Circuit Clerk:
Salary of Cireuit Clerk 66,575 66,575 66,576 - (1)
Otber salaries and wages 103,214 103,214 101,214 - 2,000
Stationery and office supplies 4,300 4,500 3,458 - 1,042
Copy machine supplies - - - - -
Books, periodicals, manuals - - - - -
Computer related - - - - -
Auto mileage 200 200 135 - 65
Postage 4,000 4,000 4,000 - -
Printing, duplicating, binding - - - - -
Telephone 1,500 1,500 1,220 - 280
Office equipment maintenance - - - - -
Office equipmeut rental 2,100 2,100 880 - 1,220
Dues and memberships 250 250 208 - 45
Total Cireuit Clerk 182,339 182,339 177,684 - 4,651
The Courts of Menard County:
Juror fees 6,000 6,000 854 - 5,116
Office equipment 1,000 1,000 - 1,000
Stationery and office supplics 1,500 1,500 1,270 - 230
Books, periodicals, mauuals 7,000 7,000 9871 - 2,871)
Jurors' food and meals 1,000 1,000 - - 1,000
Computer related - - - - -
Court reporting 5,000 5,000 590 - 4,410
Legal - guardian ad litem, attorney lees, - - - -
Judpe's salary, ctc, 85,000 85,000 69,612 - 15,388
Services for juveniles 1,000 1,000 - - 1,000
Witnesses 25,000 25,000 - - 25,000
Auto mileage 400 400 - - 400
Travel cxpenses 500 500 - - 500
Telephane - - - - -
Medical, dental and nursing fees 500 500 1515 - (2,015)
lostruction and schooling 1,000 1,000 629 - 371
Office equipment maintenance 1,000 1,000 - - 1,000
Other 500 500 - - 500
Postage 600 600 600 - -
Dues and memberships 350 350 - - 350
Office equipment greater than $500 - - - - -
Total Courts of Menard Connty 137,350 137,350 85,971 - 51,379
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
GENERAL FUND

BUDCGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2018

Variances -
Positive (Negative)
2018 Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Original to Budget Final to
Original Final Amounts Final Actual
EXPENDITLRLES
Judiciary and court related (continued)
Probation office:
Salaries and wages (60% reimbursed 120,064 120,004 120,063 - 1
by the State of [Ninois)
Stationery and office supplies 1,000 1,000 607 - 393
Computer related 250 250 -
Travel and anto mileage - - - - -
Legal notices or publishing - - - - -
Postape b M0 K11i) - -
Telephane - - - - -
Instruction and Schooling - - - - -
Office cquipment 2,900 2,900 1,45} - 1,450
Total probation office 124,514 124,514 122,420 - 1,844
Tatal judiciary and court related 675,552 675,552 595,889 - 79,413
County development:
Soil Conservation 6,250 6,250 6,250 - -
Total County development 6,250 4,250 6,250 - -
Total Expenditures : $ 3,338,951 % 3,338,951 $ 2,994,572 ¥ - L3 344,129
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
LIABILITY AND INSURANCE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDLED NOVEMBER 30, 2018

Variances -
Positive (Negative)
2018 Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Ovriginal to Budget Final to
Original Final Amounts Final Actual

REVENUES

Property iaxes $ 293,523 $ 293,523 $ 300,339 5 - b 6,816

Interest - - - -

Total revenues 193,513 193,523 300,339 - 6,816

EXPENDITURES

Liability and insurance 197,316 197,16 243,119 - 54,197

Taotal expenditures ' 297,316 297,316 243,119 - 54,197

EXCESS REVENUES QOVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES (3,793) (3,793) 57,220 - 61,013
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 570,400 570,400 578,241 - 7,841
FUND BALANCE - ENDING 5 566,607 5 566,607 $ 635,46) % - b 68,854




MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON 5CHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOYEMEER 30, 2018

Variances -
Positive (Negative)
2018 Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Originalto  Budget Final to
Original Final Amounts Final Actual
REVENUES
Pruperiy taxes 3 338,970 g 238,970 F 335,095 b3 - b} (875)
Public safety sales tax 460,000 460,000 478,228 - 15,228
Federal and State payments 2,000 2,000 25,508 - 23,508
Charges for services 434,200 434,200 526,644 - 92,444
Other - - 116,636 - 116,036
Interest - - 1,840 - 1,540
Total revenues 1,235,170 1,235170 1,486,951 - 251,781
EXPENDITURLES
Public safety:
Salarics and whages 748,720 748,720 735,946 - 12,774
Retirement 114,000 114,000 106,126 - 7,874
EUnemployment compensation - - - - -
Health inserance 70,000 70,000 68,002 - 1,908
[nsurance and risk manapement 66,032 66,032 74,829 - (8,797)
Operational 41,800 41,800 47,382 - (5,582)
Repair and maintenance 21,000 21,000 23426 - (2,426)
Rents and leascs 24,000 24,000 - - 24,000
Telephone 9,000 9,000 8,801 - 199
Professional assistance 35,000 35,000 31,058 - 3,942
Other 26,150 26,150 12,557 - 3,593
Equipment acquisitions 243,000 243,000 281,555 - (38,555)
Intcrest expense - - - - -
Total expenditures 1,308,702 1,398,702 1,399,772 - {1,470y
EXCESS REVENLES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (163,532) (163,532) 87,179 - 250,711
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Opcrating transfers in (out)
To Building Improvement Fund (79,400) {79,400} (20,908) - (11,508)
Total ather Nnancing sourecs (79,400) {79,400} (90,908} - (11,508)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE {242,531) (242,932) {3,729) - 239,103
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 688,356 688,356 789,953 - 101,597
FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ 445424 § 445424 § 786,224 b - § 340,800




MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
RETIREMENT AND I'ICA FUND

BUDGLETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FORTHE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2014

Variances -
I*ositive (Negative)
2018 Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Original to Budget Final to
COriginal Final Amounts Final Actual
REVENUES
Property taxes 5 615,650 5 615650 & 614,021 5 - s (1,629)
Federal and State payments 21,000 21,000 21,485 - 445
Total revenues 636,650 636,650 635,506 - {1,144)
EXPENDITLRES
I"ensions and fica
ImrT employer's porticn 252,650 252,650 279,540 - {26,890)
Fica employer's portion 210,471 210,471 230,075 - {19,604)
Tutal expenditures 463,121 463,121 509,615 - {16,494)
EXCLESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 173,529 173,529 125,80 - {47,638)
FLUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 330,687 830,687 29,776 - (911)
EUND BALANCE - ENDING 8 1,004,216 51,004,216 T 955,667 b3 - % (48,549}
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MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOIS
COUNTY HIGHWAY FUND

DBUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMEBER 30,2018

Yarianges -
Positive (Negative)
2018 Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Original to Budget Final to
Original Final Amounts Final Actual
REVENUES
Property taxes § 294,900 3 294990 3 292,108 g - L) {2,882)
Federal and State payments - - - - -
Charges lor services 170,000 170,000 229,264 - 59,264
Other 10,500 1,500 10,008 - {492)
Interest 4,000 4,000 10,508 - 6,508
Total revenues 479,490 479,490 541,8B8 - 62,398
EXPENDITURES
Roads and bridges:
Salaries and wages 309,510 309,510 269,255 - 40,155
Office 5,500 5,500 2,669 - 2,831
Operational 180,700 180,700 100,832 - 79,868
Professional lees 32,500 32,500 1,075 - 31,425
Transportation - - 150 - (150)
Publishing and printing - - 284 - (284)
Health and other insurance 38,500 38,500 38,473 - 27
Utilities 20,600 20,600 13,537 - 7,063
Repair and maintenance 090,500 20,500 72,805 - 17,695
Rents and leases 15,000 15,000 13,044 - 1,956
Right of way 5,000 5,000 - - 5,000
Bridges and culverts 1,000 1,000 - - 1,000
Road improvements 175,000 175,000 3,161 - 171,839
Drainage improvements 5,000 5,000 - - 5,000
Property acquisition 150,000 150,000 - 150,000
Equipment acquisitions 233,000 233,000 51,129 - 181,871
Other 21,500 21,500 11,048 - 10,452
Total roads and bridges 1,283,310 1,283,310 577,462 - 705,848
MET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (803,820) (803,820) {35,574) - 768,246
FUND BALANCE - DEGINNING 823,076 823,076 710,170 - {52,906)
FUND BALANCE - ENDING £ 19,256 $ 19,256 5 734,59 b3 - 8 715,340




MENARD COUNTY, ILLINOLS
COUNTY MOTOR FLEL TAX FUND

BUBRGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMRER 30, 2018

Varianees -
Positive (Negative)
2018 Budpet
Budpeted Amaunts Actoal Original to Budget Finul to
Original Final Amuounts Final Aclual
REVENLUES
Federal and State payments § 255,500 5 255,500 £ 3072483 b - b 51,883
Interest : 100 100 322 - 222
Taotal revenucs 255,600 255,600 307,705 - 52,105
EXPENDITURES
Ronad und bridpes:
Salaries and wapes 122,607 122,607 122,850 {243)
Stationery and supplies 100 100 - 100
Asphalt &nd road oil 100,000 100,000 61,470 38,530
Cinders - - - -
Salt - - - -
Apprepates 60,000 G000 66,645 (6,645}
Centerline paint - - - -
Enginecring - - - -
Hnuling 10,000 10,000 - 10,000
Rouad maintenance 10,000 10,000 5,087 4,913
Rents and leases 20,000 20,000 13,077 6,923
Bridpges and culverts - - 0,427 (6427)
Road improvements 10,000 10,000 - 10,000
Tutal expendilures 332,707 332,707 275,556 57,151
NET CHHANGE TN FUND BALANCE (77,107) (77.107) 2,149 109,256
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 394 848 394,848 301,403 (93,445)
FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ 317,74 § 317,741 § 3552 § 15811
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Health Department Fund

Results from “blending” the Menard County Health Department into the County’s
financial statements.

Tuberculosis Fund

To account for the levy and collection of the annual tax for the purpose of providing for the
care and treatment of inhabitants who may be afflicted with tuberculosis.

Animal Control Fund
To account for the reccipt of service fees from Municipalities, registration fees and fines,
and the payment of costs of the Animal Control Program in the County including payment
of damages to individuals for the loss of livestock and poultry. One-third of all fees
collected must be retained in the Fund until the first Monday in March for the purpose of
paying damage claims.
County Farm Fund

To account for the proceeds derived from the leasing of farmland owned by the County and
the payment of necessary expenditures. The County Board may appropriate accumulated
proceeds for general county purposes.

General Assistance Fund

To account for the levy and collection of the annual tax for peneral assistance purposes in
the County.

County Fair Fund
To account for the levy and collection of the annual tax for County fair purposcs.
County Clerk Document Storage System Fund
Tf? account for the collection of a recording fee used for automating the County Clerk's
office.

Tax Sale Automation Fund

T'o account for the collection of fees for costs related to the automation of the property tax
system and delinquent property tax sales.

County Eleetions Fund

To accounl for funds provided by the General Fund for annual elections costs.



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - continued

Couart Automation Fund

To account for the collection of an automation fee to be used for automating the Circuit
Clerk's office.

Cooperative Extension Service Fund

To account for the levy and collection of the annvpal tax for the Cooperative Extension
Service.

Senior Transport Fund

To account for the revenues and costs of providing transportation to Mcnard County
citizens sixty years of age and older.

Ruilding Improvement Fund

To account for monies designated for anticipated major improvements to the County
Courthouse including the County jail facility.

Court Document Storage System Fund

To account for the collection of a court document fee to be wsed to establish a court
document storape system in the Circuit Clerk's office.

Probation Services Fund

To account for funds collected and expended for costs associated with the probation office.
Plans for expenditure are subject to approval by the State probation office.

County Bridee Fund

To account for the levy and collection of the annual tax for the purpose of aiding in the
constructing and repairing of County bridges, culverts, grade separations and drainage
structurcs.

Federal Aid Matching Fund

To account for the levy and collection of the annual tax for the purpose of providing funds
to pay the expenses for engineering and other costs and its proportiopate share of con-
struction or mainienance of highways in the Federal primary, secondary, or County
highway network.

Road Repair and Maintenance Fund

To account for the levy and collection of the annual tax for the purpose of improving,
constructing, maintaining or repairing ecrtain County roads.



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - continued

Court Serviees Fund

To acconnt for the collection of court services fecs for costs related to the providing of court
security,

Court Fund
To account for the coltection of fees from the Cireuit Clerk for Court improvements.
D.U.I Equipment Fund

To acconnt for the collection of fees from the Circuit Clerk to be used for the
purchase of equipment.

County G.1.S. Fund

Yo acconnt for the resources to implement a Digitalized Geographic Information Mapping
System for the County.

State’s Attorney Drug Forfeiture Fund

To account for the receipt of drug forfeiture Munds and procecds in accordance with
provisions of the prevailing State Statute.

Emergeney Relief Fund

To account for certain prants and contributions reccived for programs te aid certain
Menard County residents in the payment of specific emergency expenditures.

Public Land Dedication Fees Fund
To account for certain zoning fees pertaining io the dedication of puhlic iands.
Tourism Prometion Fund
To account for the receipt of a county wide hotel tax to be used for funding certain costs
relatiug to tourism promeotion, conventions, expositions, theatrical, sports, and eultural
activities within the County,

Drug Traffic Prevention Fund

To acconnt for fees and contributions received for funding certain costs pertaining to
preventing drug traffic activitics in the County.

Circnit Clerk Operation and Administration Fund

To account for fees collected by the Circuit Clerk that are designated for funding certain
operations and administration costs.



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - continued

Sheriff Vehicle Fund

'To account for fees collected by the Circuit Clerk that are designated to assist in funding the
costs of acquiring and replacing the Sheriff Departmeni’s vehicles.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

Law Library Fund

To account for the revenues derived from the "law library"” fee and the payment of
expenses incurred in establishing and maintaining a law library. The money available in
the fund may not be appropriated hy the County Board but is disbursed on order of the
Chief Circuit Judge. The fees arc collected by the Circuit Clerk and paid into the Law
Library Fund.

Indemnity Fund
To account for indemnity fees paid to the County Collector derived from tax sales; the fund
is to accumulate until it reaches .03% of the asscssed valuation or 550,000, whichever is

greater. The purpose of the fund is to indemnify the Treasurer for judgments against the
Treasurer arising front tax sales.

Child Advacacy Center Fund
To account for monies collected for the purpose of establishing and maintaining a
Children's Advocacy Center to coordinate the investigation, prosecution, and treatment
referral of child abuse.

Sherifi"s Drug Forfeiture Fund

To account for proceeds from forfeitures reccived by the fund and used by the County
Sherilf for certain investigative and training expenditures.

Sheriff*s Federal Equitable Sharing Fund
To aceount for the proceeds of liquidated “seized™ assets from asset forfeiturc efforts. Such
proceceds are shared between Federal and State law enforcement agencies.

Tax Sale in Error Interest Paymcent Fund

To account for certain fees collected during the tax sale process by the County Colleetor and
the expenditure of those funds for court ordered payments.

Road Districts Truck Fund

To account for certain puoled resunrces of the County’s road districts for the purpose of
maintaining certain roads in the County.



AGENCY FUNDS

Circuit Clerk's Fund
Functions as a clearing account for the operations of the Office of the Circuit Clerk. Clerk's

fees, fines and bail bond deposits and other deposits are received by the fund and retained
until proper disposition of the funds is determined. Fecs carned are remitied to the General

Fund.
Accounts for the collection and distribution of court-ordered child support and alimony
payments.

County Clerk's Fund

Functions as a clearing account for the operation of the Office of the County Clerk. Fees
carned are remitted to the General Fund.

County Sheriff's Fund

Functions as a clearing account lor the operations of the Office of the County Sheriff Fees
earned are remitted to the General Fund.

State's Attorney's Fund

Functions as a clearing account Ior the operations of the Office of the State's Attorney, Fees
carncd are remitted to the General Fund.

County Collector's General Tax Fund

To account for the collection and distribution ol property taxes to the various taxing
districts inside and outside of the County.

County Callector's Mobile Home Privilege Tax Fund

To account for the collection and distrihution of mobile home privilege tax to the various
taxing districts of the County.

Township Bridge Program Fund

To aecount for the collection of State allotments (o road districts for bridge construction
projccts in the County.

Township Motor Foel Tax Fund

To account for the colleetion and distribution of State motor [uel tax allotments for the road
districts of the County.



AGENCY FUNDS - continucd

Inheritance Tax Fund

To account for collections of State inheritance taxes assessed and their remittance to the
State Treasurer.

Payroll Clearing Funds

To account for the payment of salaries and wages of County employees, and the related
payroll taxes and certain employee benefits.

Health Tnsurance Clearing Fund

To account for the inflows from the County, and participating employees that are used to
fund the costs of health insurance premiums.

Sex Offender Registration Fee Fund

To account for the annual fees collected from registered sex offenders. These fees are
shared by the County Sherilf with several State agencics.

Inmates Fund

To account for commissary tramsactions at the County jail and other amounts credited to
the benefit of County jail inmates.
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